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Our Vision
At Shell Pakistan Limited,

we strive fo deliver results, pertorm fo the
highest standards, develop our people,
provide quality customer service anc
actively pursue consistent safety
improvements. A firm foundation based
on performance enables us to deliver

strong returns and value growth for our

stakeholders, greater and better choices

for our customers and opportunities and
improvements in the quality of life of our
communifies. Our commitment fo

performance at every level continues to

be both the challenge and the aspiration.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Forty-Third Annual General Meeting of Shell Pakistan Limited will be held
gn Thursday, April 19, 2012 at 10:00 a.m. at Sheraton Karachi Hotel, Karachi to fransact the following
usiness:

A. ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To recelve, consider and adopt the Report of Directors and Auditors together with audited financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2011,

2. To appoint Auditers for the financial year January 1 to December 31, 2012 and to fix their
remuneration.

B. SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
Resolved that

a)] AsumofRs.171,219,730 out of the free reserves of the Company be and is hereby capitalised
and applied fowards the issue of 17,121,973 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/~ each as bonus shares in
the rafio of 1:4, i.e. one share for every four shares held by the members whose names appear on
the Members Register on April 4, 2012. These bonus shares shall rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing shares.

bj Members entitled to fractions of shares as a result of their holding either being less than four shares
or in excess of an exact muliiple of four ordinary shares shall be given the sale proceeds of their
fractional entillement for whicl? purpose the fractions shall be consolidated info whole shares and
sold on the Karachi Stock Exchange.

c) Forthe purpose of Tving effect fo the foregoing, the Directors be and are hereby authorised fo give
such directions as they deem fit to setile any question or resolve any difficulties that may arise in the
distribution of the said bonus shares or in the payment of the sale proceeds of the fractions.

A statement under Section 160 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 setling forth all material facts
concerning the Resolufion contained in item 3 above, which will be considered for adopfion at the
Meeting, is annexed fo this Nofice being sent to the Members.

By Order of the Board

Tarig Saeed

Secrefary

Karachi: March 7, 2012
Shell House,

6, Ch. Khaliquzzaman Road,
Karachi - 75530

01 I Shell Pakistan Limited



Notes:

[i) The register of members will remain closed from April 5 to April 19, 2012 (both days inclusive).
Transfers received in order at the office of our Share Registrars, FAMCO Associates (Pvi] Lid.,
1% Floor, State Life Building 1-A, I. |. Chundrigar Road, Karachi by the close of business on April
4, 2012 will be in time for the purpose of issuance of bonus shares fo the transferees,

[il A member entitled to aftend and vote at the meeting shall be entitled to appoint another person,
as his/her proxy to attend, demand or join in demanding a poll, speak and vote instead of
him/her, and a proxy so appainted shall have such rights, as respects attending, speaking and
voling at the meeting as are available to a member. Proxies in order to be effective must be
received at the registered office of the Company not lafer than 48 hours before the meefing. A
proxy need not be a member of the Company.

(i) Shareholders are requested to nofify any change in their addresses immediately to our Share
Registrars, FAMCO Associates (Pvi) Ltd., 1% Floor, State Life Building 1-A, |. |. Chundrigar Road,
Karachi,

[iv} Shareholders or their proxies are required o bring with them their original National Identity Card
or Passport along with the Participant’s ID Number and their Account Number at the fime of
attending the Annual General Meeting in order fo authenticate their identity.

[vl A form of Proxy is enclosed with the Notice of the Meeting being sent to the members.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 160 OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984

This statement is annexed to the Notice of the Forty-Third Annual General Mesting of Shell Pakistan
Limited o be held on Thursday, April 19, 2012 at 10:00 a.m. at which cerlain special business is to
be transacted. The special business is fo capitalise the amount specified above from the free reserves
of the Company and apply it towards the issuance of bonus shares to the shareholders. The purpose of
this statement is to set forth the material facts concerning such special business.

Item 3 of the Agenda

The Board of Directors recommend that taking into account the financial position of the Company the
issued capital of the Company be and is hereby increased from 68,487 892 shares fo 85,609,865
shares by capitalisation of free reserves amounting to Rs. 171,219,730 and the issuance of bonus
shares In the ratio of 1:4, i.e. one share for every four shares. The Directors of the Company are
inferested in the business fo the extent of their shareholding in the Company.

Annual Report 201 1 |02 -



Sarim Sheikh joined Shell in 1993 and fer the
last ten years 1\05 held & number &f senior rolas
in different Shell businesses. During his most
fecent assignment as General Manager of
Dislribulor Markels — Europe, Alvica & Lalin
America, Sarim monoged Shell lubricants
business in over 55 countiies.

Sarim currenﬂy serves as a Direclor on the
Board of 3 listed companies, including ane in
Oman. In addilion, he has beean on the Board
of the Shell Lubricants Supply Company BV and
Shell Creatia. Sarim holds a MBA degree fram
IBA end London Business School, which he
achieved with distinction.

Sarim was appointed Chiel Exsculive Olflicer
and Managing Director, Shel| Pakistan Ud. in
April, 2011, and Chairman of the Board of
Direclars on Juna, 2011

Sarim Sheikh

Zaffar A Khan

Zalfor A Khon groduated os o mechanical
engineer in 1967 from Peshawar University and
soon thereafier [oined Esso/Fxxon Chemical
which become Engro Chemicals in Pokistan. He
retired from the company in 2004 after serving
for 35 vears, the last six as President & CEQ,
His camer with Bxxon/Engro spanned all major
corparate funciions induding Markering,
Manufacturing, and Finance & Comporate

Sarvices.

He hos a certificate from the Advanced
Managsmant Program at the University of
Hawaii and has comple-ted short courses ot
INSEAD and Harvard Business School, Zaffar
serves on a number of boards both in the
private ond public sector and of organisalions
with enviranmental and philenthropic focus. He
is o recipient of lhe exalted Sitarari-mtiaz.

=03 [ Shell Pakisian Limited

Rafi H Basheer is a Chartered Accountant and a
career finance professional. Alter completing his
accountancy training in londen, UK, Rall worked
for two years with PricewaterhouseCoopers in
Dubai as Assistant Manager in Audit before
jeining Shell Pakistan In January, 2000,

At Shell, he has held a variaty of roles locally
and overseas ranging from Retail Finance
Manager Shell Pakistan, Mergers and
Acquisifions Finance for Shell Downstream
Asla/Pacific, Global Govermance Manager for
the Cownstream B2B business to most recently
the role of Finance Manager Fast for the
Commercial Fuels business. Currently he 1s Chief
Financlal Officer, Shell Pakistan Utd.

RafiH

Michael Noll

Michael Nall is the VP Finance Global
Commercial for Shell's Downsiream B2B business.
He siarted his career in 1987 in Germany as
deputy controller of a Shell Chemicals unit
[agrochemicals}, Afier that, he held various
positions in EP, OP and Chemicals, serving in the
Netherlands, UK, Singapors and Germany.

Michoel has been involved in two rounds of
Globalisation [Chemicals 1998-2000 and
Downstream 2005 onwards! and led the Finance,
IT and C&P arganisation in Germany during the
acquisition of the DEA businass and subssquent
infegration of the business info Shell.

Farrakh K Captain completed both a
Bachelors and Masters degree from MIT,
After graduating he joined Arhur D. Litfle in
the USA, and went on fo establish their

ractice in Pakistan. From 1978 10 1994

led @ major US-Pakistan joint venture

chemical manufaciuring business in
Pakistan, CaptainPQ Chemieal Industries
(Pvl.) Lid.

Farrokh is a member of the Board of the
American Business Council. He now
devates much of his time 1o social
development and is o Trustee of the Layion
Rahmatulla Benevolent Trust and former
Chairman of the Pakistan Human
Development Fund. He is serving his eighth
threeyear term as Director of

Shell Pakistan Lid.

Haroon Rashid is the Supply and
Distribution General Manager for the
Pakistan,/Middle East/Indla Cluster since
Jaruary, 201 1. He joined Shell Pakistan
ltd. In 1925, For his first five years he
worked In Refall Sales, Nonfuels Refailing
and Network Planning.

In 2007 he ok time off to complete @
MBA at INSEAD and rejoined Snell os o
Consultant in the Downstream Managemant
Consultancy, london, In 2005 he became
the Downstream Competitor Intelligence
Manager and then moved to Singapere In
2008 as the Global Marketing Manager
for Aviation.



Omar Y Sheikh

Chon Cheen [Nick) completed his
educas:lmm Monash, Meiboﬁ:ne in
Australia in Engineering and subsequently
oblained a MBA. Nick served wo and half
years in the Singaporean Army followed by
a posilion of Singapere’s Public Uliliy
Board. He joined Shell's Pulou Bukom
Refinery in 1984 and has held various
refinery reles in mainfenance, major
projects, technical advisory and change
management.

INick served as HR GM Singapore belore
maving on to GM Disribution for the Middle
Easl/Asia, whera he oversaes a number of
counfries including Pakiston.

Omar Y Sheikh has bean with Shell sinca
1995 and has worked in Remll,
Commercial lubricants, Downstream

Siratagy and Porffolie reles. Cmar alse
worked at Shell International lid. In london
with senior Downstream leadership on
developing businass sialegy and

lmp[emenring powfoiio lransactions.

Omar has MBAs frem INSEAD and IBA. His
|ast role in Pakistan was lubricants Indirect
Sales Manager. His is now GM Lubricants
at Shell Pokisian Lid.

Imran R lbrahim is a graduate from
Govemment College, lahore, and pursued
post graduate studies at BA in Karachi. He is
an entregrenaur with 35 years of experience
In diverse areas of business such as
distribution of products for various
multinafionals as well as cation ginning and
edible oll extraciion. He Is also a Ditecior of
PICIC Asset Management Company Limited.

Badaruddin F Vellani

MNasser N S Jaffer holds an Associated Science
Diploma in Agriculiure from University of
Califernia. From 1969 to 2003 he wos
respcnrlslb!e for the cheml::ul, insecticides and
pesticides businesses ot Joffer Brothers. In 2003
he took over as Chairman and CEO.

He serves on mulliple boards including The
Kidney Centre, Ha was also the Honorary Consul
of the Philippines until 2010. Nasser [oined Shell
Pakistan lid.’s Board in June, 2011.

Nasser N § Jaffer

Badaruddin F Vellani is an Honours graduate
in Chemical Enginearing from the
loughboraugh University of Technology and s
also a Barister at law from the Middle
Temp|e, london. Bodar was called 1o the Bar
in 1982 and began legal practice in Karachi
immediately thersalter. He is an Advoeats of

the Supreme Court of Pakiston and is a pariner

at Vellani & Vellani,

In addition fo his |egu| practice, Badar is also
a member of the Beard of Directors of several
mulfinational companies covering FMCG,
munufacruring, medicing and phllonﬁmpy.

Board
of Directors
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Report of the Directors

The Directors of your Company present their Annual Report together with audited financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011.

The profit for the year ended December 31, 2011 after providing for distribution and marketing,
administrafive expenses, other and financial charges amounts to:

(Rupees in millians)
Profit before taxation 2,833
Taxation (1,927]
Profit for the year 04
(Rupees)
Earnings per share 13.23

Approprialions and movement in reserves have been disclosed in the Stalement of Changes in Equity
on page 27 of the financial statements.

At their meeling held on March 7, 2012, the Board of Direciors of the Company has proposed a 25%
issue of bonus shares in the ratio of one share for every four shares held by the members through

capitalization of Rs. 177,219,730 out of free reseves of the Company. The approval of the members
for issue of bonus shares will be obiained in the Annual General Meeting o be held on April 19,

2012. The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 do not include the effect of
these appropriations.

1. The financial statements, prepared by the management of Shell Pakistan Limited, present fairly its
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

2. Proper books of account of Shell Pakistan Limited have been maintained.

3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently opplied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

4. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial siatements ond any departure there from has been adequately disclosed.

5. The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

6. There are no significant doubts upon Shell Pakistan Limited'’s ability fo continue as a going concern.

7. There has been no material departure from the best pracfices of corporate governance, as
delailed in the lisling regulations.

=07 I Shell Pakistan Limited



Key operating and financial data for the last seven years in summarized form is given on page 20.
The significant deviations in the results of the Company from last year have been discussed in the
chairman’s review on page 15.

Q. A statement as fo the value of investmenis of provident, gratuity and pension funds on the
basis of audited accounts as at December 31, 2010 is included in note 35.4 of the financial
statements.

10. During the year six Board meetings were held and the altendance by each Director is
given on page /0.

11. The pattern of shareholding and additional information regarding pattern of shareholding is given
on page 7 1. The company is a subsidiary of the Shell Petroleum Company limited, london
(holding company) incorporated in the United Kingdom.

12. The Auditors M/s A. F. Ferguson & Co. refired and being eligible offer themselves for
reappointment.

13. Details of purchase/sale of shares by the directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their
spouses and minor children are given on page 72.

14. Details of the Corporate Social Responsibility and other activities under taken by the Company
during the financial year are given on pages 11 fo 12,

On behalf of the Board

Karachi: March 7, 2012 Sarim Sheikh

Chairman & Chief Executive
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OUR PERFORMANCE

For Shell Pakistan, 2011 was a year of good growth for our brands into
new seclors of the market. We delivered major projects and campaigns that
will contfribute fo our continued expansion. We achieved 10 million man
hours without incident through the improvement of operational safety,
consiant vigilance and extensive training. Activities to build communities

across the couniry were the most aligned with our business than ever belore.

We conlinued to develop leadership by hiring young talent and investing in

building skills.

2011 IN REVIEW

Shell Pakistan Limited's {SPL] organisation is
made up of a number of different businesses
which market and distribute o range of
refined products across the country for
commercial, industrial and transport use
SPIs business includes Refail, Business 1o
Business (B2B| including Commercial Fuels
and Aviation, and Lubricants. Our products
include motor gasoline, diesel, fuel oil,
aviation fuel and a range of lubricants

We cenfinue fo be the market leader in
lubricants with a 4 1% market share and
have the largest network of refail sites of any
privaie Cil Marketing Company in the
couniry. We have furher expanded our
storage facilities in 2011 1 have the
second largest cil product storage capacity
in Pakistan,

SPUs businesses faced o chollenging
operaling environment during 2011 asa

result of long aulstanding government
receivables of Rs. 13.8 billion which
confinue fo impact cash positions and our
ability to grow. Despite this, we continue fo
reinforce our position as a leader in the oil
and gas indusiry in Pakistan,

Our efforts Io resolve this issue remain an
ongoing top priority. Numerous
engagements with relevant Government
stakeholders led fo a small releose of
receivables in 2011, The Govemment also
approved a slight increase in refail margins
for motor gasoline and diesel. The increase,
however, does nol cover increasing costs of
doing business in Pakistan or inflafion and
our margins remain the lowest the region.

DELIVERING ENERGY SAFELY

SPL confinues to achieve Heallh, Safety,
Security and Environmental {HSSE)
milestones, again achieving zero recordable

fatalifies in 2011 and attaining the
distinction of over 10 million man hours
without @ Lost Time Injury [LTI). Building on
2010 focus on *Doing the Right Thing”,
2011 emphasised greater awareness
among staff 1o further embed safaty in their
daily professional and personal lives.

According to the Pakistan Bureau of
Statislics, the number of road accidents
invalving tank lorries on Pakistani roods in
2010 wos 9,747, contributing to what
Shell believes 1s mostly preventable loss of
life. Because of this, SPL conlinues o
priorifise its driver community’s safety. To do
this, SPL ensures its drivers are provided with
fopoftheline working conditions, rest stops
at frequent intervals and regular fraining ond
capacity bullding exercises. All of these
foctors contribute fo their ability to do their
jobs safely and efficiently.

Qur commitment fo improving road safety
through our tank lomy driver community
continved to be a priorily for SPLin 2011,
We collaborated with the National
Highway and Molorway Police 1o frain over
280 SPL tank lormy drivers across Ihe country
in 5 day, infensive courses designed with
the objective of preventing and curiailing the
number of accidents invalving oll tankers,
This is done by focusing driver attention
towards defensive driving skills fo change
their alfitudes behind the whesl,

4 Shell drivers undergo rigorous aining 1o ensure they're evervigilant teward cirumstonces which could affect their safety and that of their vehicles and the fraffic oround them.

TAKING SAFETY PERSONALLY

At the end of 201 Ta Shell Pakisian tank lomy diiver was en route from Shel’s
JMCO Mehmood Kot Depot to the Tam Jabba Terminal cutside of Peshawar
when he saw a sedan on fire an the highway. Our driver pulled over 1o the side of
the highway and used his extinguishers o douse the fire.

Because the driver used two of his thiee fire oyfinders fo put aut this fire,
he continued his joumey wih a dd?ar&"tbwlas,ﬁlbaaqﬂppadmhmr
ﬁdynmmrrgln at his destination sofiely, At Tamu Jobba his
exinguishers were with exras there so that his delivery roufine continued

The entire episade was winessed by a Molorway Police Inspector, who had been unable fo hefo the sitation because of no aocess to any fire fighting
equipment. The Inspecior recorded and repored the incident fo The National Highway and Maierway Police, who sent a lefier of appreciafion fo SPLIo
recognise the driver’s timely display of the right behaviors in an emergency situation.

SAFEGUARDS MINIMISE THE LIKELIHOOD OF A SAFETY INCIDENT ON THE ROAD

...;o.r... e —-11 :.: -"IE....:-_'\H:, = J' -
""""‘""" J ] “r ‘l"\"«-*irv‘-‘- \l-,-rr- -mld -nuin- I-A--l
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T Our netwerk offers you friendly services, umngedq.rdllh,'hah. cmmhntshopplrgundhulypmgmwrm

PUTTING OUR CUSTOMERS FIRST

Customer First [C1st) was launched in June 2011 to put cusiomens ot the heart of everything we do
ot St by understanding them, their business and their needs and thereby creating an exceplional
cusiomer exparience. C1st and the Customer Satisfaction Index are together being used by SPLas
an efficient yardsfick o measure performance with customers and improve based on their feedback.

Some Clst initiatives included revising Small Order Surcharges for custormers which led o a growth
of 7% in sales of motor gasoline. Another project infraduced Master Dot Pricing Error Resokition
lsading to the resoluion of long pending issuss of high value cusiomer invoicss.

Customer feedback is gathered over the phone by our CSC feam, customer safistaction is recorded
‘and used fo forgef issues and promptly improve Ihem within dlearly communicoted fimelines.

Trainers used driving simulators and a
praclise frack fo create a disciplined and
realifelike training environment to pravide
for an optimal training experience. One of
the cutcomes of these trainings was that the
number of Moving Vehicle Incidents (MVI)
among Shell tank lorries went down from 2
In 20100 1 in 2011, with no loss of
human life.

The Road Transport team successhully
installed InVehicle Monitoring Systems
{IVMS] in the entire Shell Pakistan flest.
These systems are specifically designed for
driver safely through journey and fatigue
management as they track vehicles in
reaHime. VWhile menitoring the vehicles,
IVMS also manitors condifians in the
environment sumounding the vehicles. If
alerts drivers fo hazardous areas; allows for

faster response fime fo emergency situations;

controls speeding in defined speed limil
aresss, known as gecfences: and prevents
unnecessary harsh braking which could
damage Ihe vehicles. Shell is the first
company In Pakistan to launch [VMS
technalogy in its enfire fleat of over 400

vehicles, making It ane of the largest IVMS
setups in Asla.

Shell supperts the UN Commission for
Global Road Safety’s call for “A Decade of
Action for Road Safety” and has focused its
activifies towards reducing the number of
deaths caused by road accidents in 2020
by 50%. Shell realises that during the
Decade of Action, it s critical to foster
global and local partnerships and align

our acfivities further to achieve this goal.

Pakistan has one of the highest road
accident rate in the world. Reckless traffic
and low implementation of rules causes one
biker death every 62 hours in Karachi
alone. Eadier in 201 1, another stokeholder
audience imporiant fo- Shell — motoreyele
drivers — were engaged at SPL retail sites in
Lahore thraugh Project Angel. Specially
frained attendants spoke with motoreyelists
who were refueling their bikes. Both drivers
and passengers were asked o dismount
from their vehicles during the refueling
process while atendants explained fo them
why this was o necessary safety precaufion.

A second iniflative fargeting motoreycle
drivers in partnership with the Traffic Police
and Road and Traffic Injury Research &
Prevention Centre was a helmetwearing
awareness pilot campaign. Motoroyelist
refueling their blkes at SPL refail sifes in
Karachi were engaged while refueling their
vehicles by site staff who asked them to
dismount from their bikes and encouraged
them o pun::hc:se and wear helmets. Select
refail sites also organized booths where
helmeats were avallable for purchase al
discounted rates for bikers.

While ensuring the safely of people is our
fop priority, SPL consfanty extends its
aclivilies to make cerlgin our assets are safe
and efficient. SPLs Supply & Distribufion
[S&D) team conducted a complete survey of
its maintenance sysiems fo oplimise the
resources being invested in the upkeep of
our assets over fime. The Survey's findings
saved SPL over Rs. 12 million in the form of
redundant mainfenance contracts over
period of 3 years which have been done
away with,

.3 SPL driver tminings use a curricilum b:us]ng on chcmgmg n'llf[udcus and behaviowurs of those behind the wheal,

LT
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OUR PEOPLE

Building Diverse Talent

SPL resumed its graduate recruitment
programme and internships in 201 1 after
a threevyear gap. The response was
outstanding and resulted in our recruitment
of eight graduates from two Assessment
Centers. We wers joined by 18 interns
who worked af SPL over the year and who
had opportunities fo be involved in
chadllenging projects across our businesses
and functions.

We connecied with student groups of 15
different events held ot institutions for
higher education. These sessions were
valuable opportunities to meet with
university and professional students to
discuss our expertise and opportunities
avoilable at Shell.

Qur new employeses recruited in 2011
come from a variely of excellent local and
foreign institutions of higher education,
adding fo the diversily that we pride our
working environment an. One major
highlight was the new female falent we
inducted this year — 30% of all recruits,
many of them in frontline business roles,
and 33% of our inferns,

Employee Communication

SPL continued to score well in its annual
staff People Surveys, ranking higher than
other Shell companies and TopQuartile
corporalions around the world in several
areas. Specilic ftems in which SPL scored
well include Employee Engagement,
Values, leadership Behavior and Taking
Personal Responsibility for Safety.

RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS

Shell Aviation continued as the preferred
supplier for both domestic and foreign
airlines visiting Pakistan during 2011,

It expanded its customer base for both
inland and export sales for jet fuel and
aviafion gasoline.

All SPU's Aviation sites exhibited excellent
safety performance and compliance
throughout 201 1 and achieved Gedl Zero
for a fourth year in a row. This was the
best country-wide performanee throughout
the Middle East, Sauth Asia & Alrica
region. Some ol our sites hove gone
beyond this and achieved 14 years of
operation without recordable injury or

spill os of 2011,

SOCIAL INVESTMENT

LiveVWIRE is o Royal Dutch Shell Sociol
Investment programme operaling in 20
countries. It aims o help young people
explore starling their own business as o
viable career option. LiveWIRE was
launched in Pakistan in 2003 by the name
Tameer. Shell Tomeer supports young
people between the ages of 18 and 32
by offering them counseling and Iraining
services on becoming an entrepreneur and
starting o business, Tameer also hosts an
Award Ceremony ta recognise 10 young
entrepreneurs’ business success for which it
accepts applications from across Pokistan.

In 2011 Tameer developed partnerships
with the British Council and Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Authority
{SMEDA) to reach out fo rural and student
communities. [t also inkaduced an
inTems.hip programme, Tameer Information

Desk for Entrepreneurs (TIDE) at two local
Universifies in Karachi to expose and
develop entrepreneurial skills among
universify student groups.

TIDE had 73 student Interns who worked
at Shell’s office in Karachi for & weeks
over the summer, During this fime they
successfully conducted enterprise
development workshops at Shell's model
villoge oulside Karachi, where they fmined
the villagers in enterprise development and
livelihood improvement fechniques. The
interns olso conducted and analysed o
market study for SPLUs Lubricant business
and made recommendations according fo
their findings to the team.

Fueling Education

SPL partnered with The Citizens
Foundation [TCF) 1o build & schools In
earthquake and fleod ravaged parts of
Pakistan, three of which were completed
and opened in 201 1. To lake this
partnership further, we also developed o
sc|'|0|c|r51'|'|p programme with TCF for the
children of our forecourt, installation and
truck driver staff. The scholarship allows
them 1o apply at any TCF school in
Pakistan, and if accepted attend schoal for
only Rs. 10 a month.

Further demenstrating our commitment to
youth in Pakistan, SPL menfored student
teams from local universities preparing for
the Shell Eco-marathon Asia competitian.
Over a dozen teams registered and
proceeded ta design and fobricate their
own vehicles to compete in Malaysia in
July, In @ rapid imprevement from 2010,
almost half the teams who passed inifial

4 Poldsiani Shell Ecormarathon teams had a chance fo showoase thelr vehicles among industrial and media stakeholders af the British High Commission in lslamabed.

=11 I Shell Pakistan Limited
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1 Shell is investing Rs. 12 million 1o develop housing infrastructure and give enterprise raining st Goth Noor Mehommad ayver period of 3 yeors.

REBUILDING LIVES

Located almost 25 kilometres outside of Karachi where 25% of the cily's waste is dumped, Goth Neor Muhammad is an ulire-poor
squatter seftlement. Most of its 800 residents live wall below the poverly line with no access to housing or amenities of any kind. They
make their livings by sifting through garbage, buming off the biodebris, and sorting and selling any glass or metal which remains.

Most of the refuse is sorted by women and children who have smaller fingers and can work faster — but because of the constant exposure
fo pollutants, skin and upper respiratory disease is rampant in the villoge. Homes are constructed from whatever villogers can collect from
the dump sifes, and unifl SPL and its pariners infervened, very few children had ever atiended school or visiied @ docior.

leading by example, SPL partnered with Pakistin Poverty Alleviation Fund {PPAF) and Health and Nutrition Development Society [HANDS)
to develop a model village of Goth Noor Muhammad. The ‘new’ village has been designed with basic infrastructure, housing with
insulation against the scorching summer heat, with high csilings, ventilation and screens to keep insects out, Each group of homes has its
own courtyard and vegetable garden olong with a communal kitchen fully equipped with smokefree energy efficient stoves. When
completed, the village will alse have a network of brickfinished walkways, o drainage system and covered waoter storage fanks, a basic

health clinic and school for primary and secondary education.

Almost halfway through this project, change is becoming apparent. Children fake great care fo come fo school clean and showered
every day with their hair combed and nails cleaned. Women knaw how important it is for them fo visit the female health worker at the
clinic o discuss their fomilies’ health concems, and men are involved in community mobilisation groups to discuss issues and gain access
fo basic amenities |ike lond fifles, water lines and electricily.

technical requirments also passed safety fests
on inspection of the track. Gualification
gave them a chance to race their vehicles
on the frack ot Sepang fo see how far they
could go on just one litre of fuel.

Community Focus

Holding true to our commitment to being o
responsible member of the communities in
which we operate, SPL staff contributed
towards relief efforis ofter the flosh floods
that whippad through Sindh due to hm:wy
rainfall. The Shell Aviation team worked
arcund the clack fo ensure smooth provision
of fuel supplies 1o over 160 Pakistan Amy

and relief agency flights engaged in rescue
and aid operations.

Staff members in Karachi raised and
collected funds which the company matched
to purchase ralions and hygiene supplies.
Staff bought, packed, loaded goods into
trucks and accompanied them inte Sindh.
Each bag, which weighed aver 30 kg, was
enough to feed a fomily of 8 for over 3
weeks. Bags were distributed fo fomilies
who hadn't received aid balore, who were
living in makeshift camps on sand dunes in
remate areas outside Umerkot and Sanghar.

T Shells porinership with TCF has grown Info a dynamic
ane with staff Rohbar voluntears, scholarships and
scnools across the counlry,

Annual Report 201 1 I 12 »



»

T Shell's Omeré campaign was the first of s kind customer offer.

RETAIL

A great deal of focus is being given to
concenirate our large Retail network to
ensure every customer visifing our Relall
sites leaves satisfied. Qur Retail team
completed remodelling 21 former RVI sifes
in 2011 1o RVHE sites with an upgraded
and mare visible image. Maintenance and
upkeep of all of our sites is a constant
process and a high priority for our Retail
business. We are happy fo report that our
teams worked around the clock together 1o
ensure that supplies of moior gosoline,
diesel and CNG were confinuous despite
serious country-wide shortages and load
shedding In 2011,

Our network buzzed with acfivity
throughout the year with a number of
excifing promofions and customer offerings.
SPLs parinership with Omoré created o
great deal of excitement amengs! motorist
customers, clearly visible from increased
sales during and ofter the campaign. Shell
Lubricants also received boosts af Retail
sites through numerous promotions like the
Helix oil change which promised more
than just an il change. It offered an
opportunily for cusiomers to avail the
experiise of lubricants specialists while
having their car checked and serviced.

SPL also restarted its Trucker's Club
campaign in 2011 1o expand and
enhance our loyal customer base among
truck drivers by creating valuable onthejob
offers for them such as meal packages
throughout the year. The impact of this
campaign was a 213% growth In the sale
of Rimula and 23% growth in diesel sales.

<1 13 | Shell Pakistan Limited

¥ o

rs

ENJOY ,
FREE* OMORE

On aevery 15 Litres of Shell Super
or Shell Helix pock

www.shell.com.pk
0800 - SHELL

Super HELDL &2 @

LUBRICANTS

For a fifth consecutive year, Shell has been
named the world's lubricants market share
lsader. We sold more lubricants for the fifth
year in a row than any of our compelitors
according to independent worldwide
consulting and research firm, Kline &
Company. Kline reporied that we secured
more than 13% of the market by volume, a
2% lead over our nearest competiior,

Shell Lubricants continues leading in local
markets despite rising fuel prices in the
country and disastrous floods which
ravaged paris of the agriculiural hearfland

for the second year in o row. The Lubricants
team parinered with their Retail colleagues,
Shell Clobal lubricants and a leading
telecommunications company fo structure,
organise and execute 50 Rimula agriculture
sector events to reach out fo new customers
— farmers, land owners and tractor drivars.
Ornpack promations for customers included
excifing prizes like new tractors and
motorcycles for lucky draw winners.

Melas held at Retall sites promoted Rimula
to o wider customer audience, raising
customer awareness of the benefits of using
this product. These events resulted Ina 17%
increase in soles at SPL Retail sites.

Rapid growth in market share in the
ogrisector was o cleor result of these
crossbusiness efforfs to underfoke and
successfully execute a goliath campaign
which lasted over three months and
covered multiple towns.

Another Shell Helix promation, the “Fastest
48 Hours of Your Lite" offered three lucky
winners who answered a series of radio
broadcasted questions about Shell Helix
correctly a frip fo Abu Dhabi, Winners
toured the city for three days visiting Ferrarl
World and Shell's Track lab. They olso met
with Formula One drivers and rode the
world's fastest roller coaster at break-neck
speads of 240 km/h.

& Halix iz one anging all that scientisls hove in mind whan they dmlgn aulomokile engines




OUR INVESTMENTS

While activities fo strengthen customer
loyally continued ot full speed, so did the
expansion of our business investments.

A mulfifunctional team led by S&D
completed the construction of wo fuel
tanks at our Keamari installation, with o
combined slorage capacity af 20,000
malric fonnes. The project was exscuted
over 550,000 man hours without a single
IT). Tha tanks are o huge baost to the
storage capacity af ene of our busiest
facilifies in Pakistan, and will save future
demurrage cosis.

Facilities like Keamarl and ofhers across
Pakistan require consiont maintenance

T Tha raw tonks at Keamaii were complated in Decamber 201 | without o single safety incidant

and technological overhouls to ensure
quality assurance. Benzene exposure
delectors were insfalled af the Lubdcant
testing laboratory of Keamari and on fop
of 18 loading arms at 3 of SPl's
installations where motor gaseline-camying
lorries are filled before transporting fuel to
our network of over 800 retail sites and
other customers across the couniry.

ENERGISING THE FUTURE

As we conlinue fo invest in Pakistan by
expanding our business, through
technological and commercial innovation,
consistent efforfs in improving safety and
working with communities in which we
operate, we are helping create an energy

system that is secure, affordable and
sustainable.

SPL will continue to pariner with
stakeholders in the industry to ensure its
operations continue safely as we supply
energy o fual Pakistan's ecanomic growth.
Both providers and the consumers of
energy stand fo gain from this confinued
commitment to Pakistan and our business
here — and so will aur shareholders.

4 Mo matier how hat, sieep, duary, muddym extended your operations, Shell Rimula will protect your engine under all conditians,
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Chairman’s Review
for the year ended December 31, 2011

ny for the
year ended December 31, 2011.

During 2011 the Company eamed a profit after tax of Rs. 906
million against a profit afier tax of Rs. 1,616 million in 2010.

In the past, your Company has consistently maintained a
reasonable dividend payout policy to its shareholders. This year,
keeping in view the difficult cash flow position due fo government
receivables, the Board has recommended the issuance of bonus
shares in the ratio of one bonus share for every faur shores held,
through the copitalisafion of Rs. 171,22 millien from the
Company's reserves. The Board is confident that your Company
will overcome the current challenges and will allow us 1o restore
dividend payout in future years,

Your Company remains committed o help meet Pakistan’s energy
demands while making good on your investment and continued
confidence in our performance. 2011 has been a year of trying
circumstances, High inflation, incrensing cumulative Government
receivables to the Company, rising costs of oil, heightened
security concerns and growing costs of doing business have all
had an impact en our battom line.

We were successful in growing our net revenue by 11% and our
gross profits by 3% over the pravious year. The improvement is
primarily due to favourable movements in intemational oil prices
during the year, supported by improved performance in the first
half of the year by our expart business.

= 15 | Shell Pakistan Limited:

Owr persistent engagement of Government stokeholders also
resulted in a small increase in price margins for both motor
gasoline and diesel, but these were insufficlent to cover cost
increases due fo inflation. Oil Marketing Company margins in
Pakistan continue fo be the lowest In the region. We continue fo
work with relevant stakeholders to convince them 1o review
margins as committed.

Despite a high inflation envirenment, your Company has
successfully reduced its distribution, marketing and administration
costs by 7%, This resulted in the de|ivery of on operafing prc.tFH
growth of over 16% over the previous year.

Gaovernment receivables continue to be your Company's toughest
challenge. These dues are on account of price differential claims,
sales tox and pefroleum development levy, and are ot an all fime
high of Rs. 13,900 million af the end of 201 1 compared ko

Rs. 9,002 million at the end of 2010. Our persistent efforts 1o
recover these long overdue receivables resulted in the refund of
only Rs. 1,151 million in 2011, Due to delays in the receipt of
these receivables, your Company suffered approximately

Rs. 1,700 millien in oddifienal financing costs in 2011 1o un
day-tarday operations. This had o negative impact on our bottom
line and eraded the operaling prefit gains that were made. An
immediate setlement of these dues is and confinues to be erifical
and our top priority.

Your Company continues to bear the impact of minimum fax on
turnover which has now raised our effective lox role to 68% for
201 1. Margins on our main preducts, i.e. molor gasoline ond
diesel, are regulated by the Government at around 2% of the
selling prices. However, the minimum tax regime charges us
income fax based on the selling price of the produdt. In a rising
price enviconment, as seen over the last few years, this has led 1o



increased income lax liability with o limited increase in regulated
margins. As a result our effective fax rie 1s well in excess of the
standard 35% corporate rate of income fax ond has eroded the
operating profil growth. We are In continuous discussion with fax
authorities to remove this anomaly for our industry and bring us in
line with exemplions and allowance on lumover fux already given
fo other sectors with similar challenges.

The high Interest costs due lo delayed Government receivables
and a higher fox on earnings confinue to impact Company
profitability, with money lent fo the Govemment reducing our
profitability and the Governmant minimum lax regime continuing to
extract higher faxes in a high price environment. The combination
of thase factors means the Company lost over Rs. 2,000 million 1o
the Gavernment on account of interest and higher taxes in 201 1.

Rather than slowing us down, these challenges have created an
opportunity for your Company fo increase our focus on our
operations while simullanecusly ensuring that our safety
performance is maintoined and improved in our new investments
and venlures in Pakistan.

Your Comparny continued ifs leadership in Health, Safety, Security
and Environment {HSSE} performance, achieving 10 million man
hours without a single incident or injury. We infroduced InVehicle
Monitoring Systems {IVMS) o our entire fleet fo increase our
vigilance on circumstances that could affect the safety of our
drivers and the products they fransport thousands of miles around
the country. Your Company also began Inducting its drivers in
advanced courses on safety which resulted in a reduction of
Moving Vehicle Incidents {MVI} involving Shell Pakistan fank lotries
by half in 2011,

Qur core values of hanesly, integrity and respect for people are
the driving force: behind ensuring that our stalf, cur centractors and
our pariners understand and reflect how we do business. As we
invest in our network supplying energy fo Pakistan and hamess
new opporiunifies in the market, we envision these volues
iransforming the way in which the indusiry operates.

This year your Company focused ifs efforts on reinforcing its market
leadership in the Lubricants business by meeting with and
engaging over 4,500 opinion makers In the agriculiure sector. The
goal was to introduce them to the benefits of using our

topoftheline products far their heavy-duty mochinery requirments.

It Is these kinds of campaigns combined with other smaller scole
activities throughout 2011 that sustained our standing as the
World's Number 1 Lubricants Supplier according to Kline &
Company, an independent research firm.

We completed the upgrade of our storage terminal at Keamar in
2011, confinuing our investment in topottheline facilities fo
enhance our business capabillifies in Pakistan. These upgrades have
resulted in a combined storage capacity of 20,000 fonnes and will
help the Company save demurrage charges ot Karach| por.

This year saw the consalidation of our Retail network in an effort 1o
ensure that avery sile our customers visit in Pakistan provides a
customer experience that our shareholders and this Company
would be proud of. The Retail leam worked hard fo revamp and
convert another batch of sites to RVIEvelution sites which
communicate our brand; products, services and prices in o more
clear and concise manner.

Your Company has conlinued its commitment 1o the communities if
works in through o Sociol Investment perifolio which is evolving
from @ charitydriven model o a sustainable developmentocused
one. Our new themes of Enferprise Developmenf, Access fo Energy
ond Road Safety are the brood categories in which our activities
are now being aligned.

Three of the six The Citizens Foundation [TCF) schaols we
sponsored in earthquake and flood devastated areas were
completed and inaugurated in 201 1. Through a combined total
investment of Rs. 100 million from your Company and our ulfimate
parent company, Royal Dutch Shell PLC, we created an education
endowment for the children of our retail, forecourt, depot and
driver staff ot TCF schools around the couniry.

We also inougurated the first housing compound completed ot
Goth Noor Mehammad, a model village on the outskirts of
Karachi. There we've committed Rs. 12 million to develop houses
built with indigenous materials with the help of the villoge
commuynity,

Your Company ran two pilot rood safety projects in 201 1.

The first was with the Traffic Police of Sindh torgeting matarcycle
drivers in Karachi to raise awareness and encourage them o wear
helmets. The second compaign is being in at schools throughout
the country by our Transporiation team along with the National
Highwoy & Matorway Police to educate children on road safety.

Shell has a long history In Pakistan, and we enjoy a strong
relationship with stakeholders here and in the region, that we will
conlinue fo sirengthen. As Pakistan progresses both economically
and technolegically, your Company will continue fo be a majer
player in the development of this country by supplying its growing
snergy requirements in responsible and innovative ways.

We thank our sharehalders, customers, partners and staff far their
support and commitment to our work in Pakistan. It is through this
dedicafion and the relafionships built an trusf ond performance that
Shell continues as your brand of first choice.

Sarim Sheikh
Chairman & Chiet Executive
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Performance at a Glance

PROFITABILITY (Rs. in million)

DIVIDEND DECLARED (Rs. in million)
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (Rs. per share)
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Operating and financial highlights

PRODUCT-WISE VOLUME METRIC TONS AND ESTIMATED MARKET SHARE (%)

HIGH SPEED DIESEL MOTOR GASOLINE
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T Valums e Markat chore

Sales volume Tonnes 2,373,944 2,762,889
Sales revenue Rs. / mn 247,507 223,814
Profit before taxation Rs. / mn 2,833 3,044
Profit affer faxation Rs. / mn 206 1,616
New capital expenditure Rs. / mn 1,110 2,019
Shareholders’ equity Rs. / mn 8,258 7,900
Dividend Rs. / mn - 822
Earnings per share - basic Rs. 13.23 23.59
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Operating and financial highlights

------—Year ended Dec 31

2011
Share capifal Rs. /mn &85
Reserves Rs. /mn 7,573
Shareholders’ squity Rs./mn  g§,238
Break up value per share Rs. 121
Dividend per shors Rs. -
Bonus 1:4
Profit / (loss} before tex Re. /mn 2,833
Prafit / (loss) after rax Rs, /mn 906
Famings / (loss) par share Rs. 13.23
Price earmnings ratio 144

2010 2009
6B5 685
7,215 7,586
7,900 8,271
115 121
12 33
3,044 3910
1,616 2,563
23.59 3742
8.8 6.7

5,571 5571 13,064

6,256 6,256 13612
21 91 199

13,048] (8,420 7,723
11,726] [5,164] 5,137
{25.20] (75.41) 75.01

---- Year endad June 30 -—-
548 438
8,913 el L
Q461 10157
138 148
16 30

s 1:4
379 4,640
707 3,147
10.32 45.95
39.8 10.5

{12.3) {4.1) 5.6

Working Capital

Curren! assels fa cument liabililies 0.9
Number of days siock 28
Number of days trade debis 4
Parfarmance

Prafit / (loss) after fox us %

of average sharsholders' equity 11.2
Costof sales as % of sales 83.5
Prafit / {loss] before tux as % of soles 1.1
Profit / (loss) after tax as % of sales 0.4
Total debt ratio 1.9
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Statement of Compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance

I.

The Company conlinues to encourage effective representation of Tndeggdenr nonexecutive Direciors and Direciors
representing minority interests on ifs Board of Direciors. At present, the Board includes five independent non-executive
Directors, two of whom represent minority shareholders.

The following changes occurred on the Board of the Company during the year under review:

M. Rafi Haroon Basheer resigned and Mr. Sarim Sheikh was appointed Director in his place with effect from
January 19, 2011.

M. Zaiviji Ismail bin Abdullah resigned and Mr. Sarim Sheikh was oppointed Chiel Executive Officer and
Managing Director in his place with effect from April 1, 2011.

The term of office of the incumbent Directors expired on June 12, 2011. Therefore, an Exiracrdinary General
Mesting of the Company was held ot Karachi an May 26, 2011 to elect eleven directors in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 for a ferm of three years commencing from June 13, 2011. The
names of the reliring Directors and of those elected at the said Extraordinary General Meeting are as follows:

Retired on June 12, 2011

Elected with effect from June 13, 2011

M. Zaiviji Ismail bin Abdullah
Ms. Shahnaz Wazir Ali
M. Farrokh K. Captain
M. Chong Keng Cheen
Mr. Gary Fisher

M. Imran R. |brahim

M. Zaffar A. Khan

M. Michae!l Noll

M. Sarim Sheikh

Mr. Omar Y. Sheikh

Mr. Badaruddin F. Vellani

M. Zaiviji Ismail bin Abdullah
Mr. Farrokh K. Captain
Mr. Chong Keng Cheen
Mr. Gary Fisher

M. Imran R. lbrahim

Mr. Nasser N. S. laffer
Mr. Zaffar A. Khan

Mr. Michael Noll

M. Sarim Sheikh

Mr. Omar Y, Sheikh

Mr. Badaruddin F. Vellani

M. Zaiviji Ismail bin Abdullah resigned and Mr. Rafi Haroon Basheer was appointed Director in his place with
effect from June 17, 2011,

M. Sarim Sheikh was elected Chairman with effect from June 17, 2011.

M. Gary Fisher resigned and Mr. Haroen Rashid was appeinted Director in his place with effect from October
20, 2011.

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than fen listed companies, including

To the best of our knowledge all resident Directors of the Company are registered taxpayers and none of them has
| or, being @ member of stock exchangf,
has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange. None of the Directors or their spouses are engaged in the

The Company has prepared a 'Statement of Ethics and Business Practices’, which has been received and

2.
this Company.
3.
defaulted in payment of un}/ loan to a banking company, a DFl or an NB
business of stock brokerage.
4. All casual vacancies occurring in the Board were filled up by the Directors within 30 days thereof.
5,
ocknowledged by the Directors and employees of the Company.
b.

The Board has adopled a vision/mission statement and overall corporate sirategy and has formulated significant
policies of the Com nﬁ. A record of the particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were
opproved or amended has been maintained.
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7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including appointment
and deferminafion of remuneration and ferms and conditions of employment of the CEO and oiher executive Direciors,
have been taken by the Board.

8. The Board met ot least once in every quarler and all its meelinglys were presided aver by the Chairman. Whitten nolices
of the Board meetings, along with agenda, were circuloted ot least seven days before the mestings. The minutes of the
meetings were oppropriafely recorded and circulated.

9. The Directors were apprised of their duties and responsibilities through in-house orientation courses. A refresher briefin
was delivered in Oclober 201 1. Further, one Director haos enrclled for the Corporate Govemance leadership SkilE
[CGLS) program conducted by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governarice, Karachi.

10. No change occurred in the office of the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary during the year under
review,

|1, The Directors’ Report for the year ended December 31, 2011 has been prepared in compliance with the requirements
of the Code and it fuﬂy describes the salient matters required to be disclosad. Matters 1e|ﬂﬁng o the risks and
uncerfainfies surroundinﬁ the Company and significant deviations, if any, in the financial statements from the previous
year have been highlighted in the Chairman's review.

12. The financial statements of the Company were presented by the CEO and the CFO, duly endorsed under their

respecfive signafures, for consideration and approval of the Board.

13. The Directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that disclosed in
the patiern of shareholding.

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.

| 5. The Board has formed an Audit Commifiee. |F comprises of three members, all of whom Including the Chaimman are
non-executive Directors.

16. The meetings of the Audit Commitiee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final results
of the Company as required by the Code. The terms of referance of the committes hava been formulated and advised
lo the committee for complionce.

17. The Board has setup an effecfive Internal Audit function. The reports for various internal audits conducted during the
year under review were provided Io the external auditors and discussed with the Audit Commitiee.

18. All reloted party fransactions were placed before the Audit Commitiee cnd have been reviewed and approved by the
Board of Directors in accordance with the requirement of the Code.

19. The stotutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a safisfactory rating under the quality
control review programme of the Insfitute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of the pariners of the
firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its pairiners are in
compliance with International Federation of Accountants [IFAC) guidelines on code of elhics as adopted by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

20. The statutory auditars or the persons ossociated with them have not been appointed fo provide other services except in
accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidslines in this

regard.
2]. We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code have been complied with.

Sarim Sheikh
Karachi: March 7, 2012 Chairman & Chief Execufive
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Review Report

To the Members on Statement of Compliance with Best Practices of
Code of Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practices prepared by the Board of Directors of Shell Pakistan
limited for the year ended December 31, 2011 to comply with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance, as
contained in the listing Regulations of Karachi and Lahore Stock Exchanges, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan.

Tha raspansibility for compliance with the Code of Carparate Governance is thal of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
respansibility is fo review, fa the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance
reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Code of Corporale Governance and repert if it does
not. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company personnel and review of variaus documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial slatsments wa are required fo obtain an understanding of the accounfing and internal contral
systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board's
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company’s corporate govemance procedures and risks.

Further, listing Regulations of the Karachi and lohore Stock Exchanges require the Company lo place before the Board of
Diractors for their consideration and approval, related party fransactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on tarms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price,
recording proper [ustification for using such aliemate pricing mechanism. Further, all such fransactions are also required 1o be
separaitely placed before the audit commitiea. We are only required and have ansured compliance of requirement to the extant
of approval of related party fransactions by the Board of Directors and placement of such transactions before the audit committes.
We have nol carried out any procedures lo defermine whether the related parly ransactions were undertaken at arm's length price
of not.

Based an our review, nothing has come fo our altention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not
appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code of
Corporate Governance as applicable fo the Company for the year ended December 31, 201 1.

A. F. Ferguson & Cao,
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: March 22, 2012

Engagament Pariner: Sohail Hasan
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Shell Pakistan limited as at December 31, 2011 and the related stafement of
comprehensive Income, statement of changes in equily and stalement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof, for the

year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the Information and explanations which, fo the best of our knowledge and belief,

were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of infernal confrol, and prepare and present the
above sald statements In conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We eanducted our audit in accordance with the audiling standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material misstatement, An audit
includes examining, on o test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit alse includes
assessing the accounting pelicies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the
above said slalements. We believe thal our audif provides o reasonable basis for our opinien and, after due verification, we report that:

[o] in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;
{b) in our opinion:

[il the balance sheet and stalement of comprehensive income together with the nofes thereon have been drawn up in conformi
with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are further In accordance wi
accounting policies consistently applied except for changes as stated In note 2.1.4 [a] fo the financial statements with which
We CONCLN;

(il the expenditure Incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business; and

i} the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure Incurred during the year were In accordance with the objects
of the Company;

{e) In aur opinlon and to the best of aur information and according 1o the explanations given fo us, the balance sheet, statement of
comprehensive Income, statement of changes In equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with approved accounting standards as applicable In Pakistan, ond give the information required by the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, In the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the sfate of the Company's offairs as at
December 31, 2011 and of the lofal comprehensive income, changes in equity and ifs cash flows for the year then ended; and

{d} in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 XVl of 1980).
Without qualifying our opinion we draw affention fo:

*  Nofe 10.1 to the financial stalements. As explained in note, the Company has recognised deferred tox asset on unutilized tax losses
based on projections of future taxable profits of the Company. The realisabllity of this asset is dependant on the underlying

assumplions and business drivers malerializing as projecied.

e Notes 15.1, 15.2 and 15.3 to the financial stalements. The Company considers the amount of Rs. 2,274,308 thousand,
Rs. 295,733 thousand and Rs. 747,490 thousand due from the Gevernment of Pakistan in respect of petroleum development levy
and price differential on Imported purchases and high speed diesel, respectively, as current assets. The expected fiming of the

recoverabllity of these receivables and Its consequential impact on thelr classification In the balance sheet cannot presently be
determined,

* Note 15.4 o the financial statements, The Company considers the aggregate amount of Rs. 1,961,211 thousand, receivable from
the Government of Pakistan In respect of price differential on imported motor gasoline as a good debt for reasons given in the nofe.
The ulfimate outcome of the matter cannot presently be defermined.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: March 16, 2012

Karachi

Engagsment Partner: Sohail Hasan
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Balance Sheet
as at December 31, 2011

Note 2011 2010
— (Rupees '000)——
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 6,652,020 6,502,773
Intangible assefs 5 1,321,105 1,679,707
Llongrterm investments 6 2,749,610 2,547,853
Long+term loans and advances 7 93,914 81,960
Longterm deposits and prepayments 8 194,242 190,666
Longterm debtors Q 3,732 11,442
Deferred taxation - net 10 1,383,816 1,993,350
12,398,439 13,007,751
Current assets
Stores and spares 11 15,143 14,502
Stock-intrade 12 17,847,222 12,348,438
Trade debts 13 2,488,910 2,013,358
Lloans and advances 14 66,532 76,187
Shortterm prepayments 271,133 305,384
Other receivables 15 14,633,255 9,686,866
Cash and bank balances 16 1,438,447 1,045,025
36,760,642 25,489,760
TOTAL ASSETS 49,159,081 38,497,511
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 17 684,880 684,880
Reserves 2,096,050 2,096,050
Unappropriated profit 5,477,191 5,119,105
Total equity 8,258,121 7900,035
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
liabilities against assefs subject fo finance lease 18 - 2,662
Asset refirement obligation 19 189,351 187,104
189,351 189,766
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 24,495,103 19,936,550
Accrued markup 21 217,645 86,350
Current maturity of liabilities against assets subject
to finance lease 18 - 15,550
Shortterm running finances utilised under mark-up
arrangements - secured 22 7,866,032 1,586,438
Shortterm loans - secured 23 7,879,000 8,400,000
Taxation 253,829 382,822
40,711,609 30,407,710
Total liabilities 40,900,960 30,597,476
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 49,159,081 38,497,511
Contingencies and commitments 24

The annexed notes 1 o 45 form an infegral part of these financial statements.

Sarim Sheikh
Chairman & Chief Executive
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

——
for the year ended December 31, 2011
Note 2011 2010
——(Rupees '000)——
Sales 25 247,506,537 223,813,592
MNorHuel retail - others - 1,255
Other revenue 26 550,168 406,520
248,056,705 224,221,367
Sl i (28,907,356)  (26.690,456]
Net revenue 219,149,349 197,530,211
Cost of products sold 27  (206,668,670) (185,403,153
Gross profit 12,480,679 12,127,758
Distribution and markefing expenses 28 (4,141,036) (4,524,058
Administrative expenses sy {3,471, 447) (3,672 805]
4,868,196 3,923,895
Other operafing expenses 30 (745,931) [738,589]
4,122,265 3,185,306
Other cperating Income 31 171,144 527,448
Operating profit 4,293,409 3712754
Finance costs 32 {2,095,883) (1,264,677
2,197,526 2,448 077
Share of profit of associcte - net of fax & 635,191 596,008
Profit before taxation 2832717 3,044 085
Teosaion 33 (1,926,727) (1,428,503
Profit for the year 905,990 1,615,582
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 905,990 1,615,582
— (Rupees)}——
Eamings per share 34 13.23 23.59
Approprictions have been reflected In the statement of changes In equity.
The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial skatements.
Sarim Sheikh Badaruddin F. Vellani
Chairman & Chief Executive Direcior
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended December 31, 2011

Sha Capital General Unappropriated Total
capital reserves - revenue profit
share reserves

premium
(Rupees “000)

Balance as at Januvary 1, 2010 684,880 1,889,048 207,002 5,489,673 8,270,603
Final dividend for the year ended

December 31, 2009 af Rs. 25 per share - - = (1,712,198] {1,712,198)
Interim dividend for the year ended

Dacamber 31, 2010 at Rs. 4 per share = - - {273,952 {273,952
Profit for the year : . = 1,615,582 1,615,582

Other comprehensive income for the year - ; z :

Balance as at December 31, 2010 684,880 1,889,048 207002 5,119,105 /7,900,035

Final dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2010 of Rs. 8 per shore - - - (547,904) (547,904)

Profit for the year - - - 905990 905990

Ciher comprehensive income for the year - - - = =

Balance as at December 31, 2011 684,880 1,889.048 207,002 5477,191 B,258,121

The annexed notes 1 fo 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sarim Sheilkh Badaruddin F. Vellani
Chairman & Chief Executive Director
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Statement of Cash flows
for the year ended December 31, 2011

Note 2011 2010
——(Rupees '000)——

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash {used in) / generated from operations 39 {1,014,453) 4,514,858
Finance costs paid {1,736,854) (1,179,132
Teoess paid (1,446,186)  (1,210492)
Longrterm loans and advances (11,954) 19,098
longferm deposits and prepayments (3,576) 15,876
Markup received on shorterm deposits 28,310 50,380
Longrterm debitors 11323 28,117
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (4,173,400) 2,238,505
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed copilal expenditure {1,110,469) (2,019278)
Proceeds from disposal of operafing assets 56,446 100,007
Dividend received from osscciate 433,434 360,961
Net cash usad in investing activitios (620,589) (1,558,310
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid (552,971) (1,970,324)
Repayment of liability under finance lease (18,212) (67,908
Repayment of long ferm loan - {2,500,000)
Net cash used in financing activities {(571,183) (4,538,230
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {5,365,172) {3,858,035)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (8,941,413) [5,083,378)
Cash and cash squivalents at end of the year 40  (14,306,585) (8,941,413)
The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sarim Sheikh Badaruddin F. Vellani
Chairman & Chief Executive Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

1.

1.1

1.2

24
2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.14

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Shell Pakistan Limited {the Company) is « limited liabilty Company incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the
Kanachl and lahore Stock Exchanges. The Company is a subsidiary of Shell Petroleurn Company Limited, United
Kingdom {immedicte parent] which is @ subsidiary of Royal Dutch Shell Ple. {uliimate parent). The registered office of
the Company is located at Shell House, 6, Ch. Khallquzzaman Road, Karach75530, Pakistan,

The Company markets pefroleum products and compressed nafural gas. It also blends and markets various kinds of
lubricating oils.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial sialements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as medified by remeasurement
of certain financial assets and financidl liabiliies at fair value and recognition of certain siaff retirement and other

service benefits af present value.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance,
1984 [the Ordinance}, directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan [SECP] and the
approved oecounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such Inter
national Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS] issued by the: International Accourting Standards Board (IASB] as are
nofified under the provisions of the Ordinance. VWherever, the requirements of the Ordinance or directives ssued by
the SECP differ with the requirements of these standards, the requirements of the Crdinance or the requirements of
the said directives have been followed.

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with the above requirements requires the use of certain crilical
accounting esfimates. It also requires management fo exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. The areas Involving high degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumpiions and
estimates are significant o the financial stalements are disclesed in nole 3.

Initial application of a standard, amendment or interprefation fo an existing standard

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations effective in 2011 and
relevant

The following new standards, amendments to published standard and Interpretations are mandatory for the financial
year beginning on or ofter January 1, 2011:

IAS 24 (Revised), ‘Related parly disclosures’. The revised standard supersedes |AS 24, ‘Related parly disclo-
sures’, issued In 2003. The revised standard removes the requirements for govemment related enfities to dis-
close details of fransactions with govemment and other govemment related entifies and it darifies and simpiifies
the definition of a related party. The application of this revised skandard does not have any Impact on these

financial statements,

[FRIC 14 {Amendment), ‘Prepayments of & minimum funding requirement’. The amendments correct an unin-
tended consequence of IFRIC 14, ‘IAS 19 —The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements
and thelr interaction’. Without the amendments, entities were not permitied fo recognise as an asset some vok
untary prepayments for minimum funding contributions. This was not intended when IFRIC 14 was Issued, ond
the amendments correct this. The Company's refirement benefit funds are not subject to any minimum funding
requirement, hence, these amendments have no impact on the Company's financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements —

for the year ended Dacember 31, 2011

Amendments lo following standerds as a result of improvements fo IFRS 2010, issued by IASB in May
2010:

. IFRS 7 {Amendment), 'Financial instuments: Disclosures’. The amendment emphasizes the inkeraction
between quantilative and qualitative disclosures about the nature and extent of risks associoted with
financial instrument. The amendment only affects the disclosures which have been made.

. IAS 1 (Amendment, ‘Presentafion of financial statements’. The amendment clarifies that an enfity will
present an analysis of other comprehensive income for each component of equily, either in the stale-

ment of changes in equity or in the nofes fo the financial siclements. The amendment only offects the
disclosures which have been made.

a IAS 34 [Amendment], ‘Interim financial reporfing”. This amendment provides guidance 1o illusirate
how fo apply disclosure principles in IAS 34 and add disclosure requirements around the circum-
stances likely fo affect fair values of financial insiruments and their classification, ransfers of financial
instruments between different levels of the fair value hierarchy, changes in dossification of financial
assets and changes in contingent liabilities and assets. The amendment only affects the disclosures in
the Company’s condensed interim financial information.

b) Stondards, amendments fo published standards and interpretations effective in 2011 but
not relevant

The other new standards, amendments o published standards and inferpretations which are mandctory for account
ing pericds beginning on or affer January 1, 2011 are considered not to be cumently relevant as these do not have
any significant effect on the Company's eurrent financial reporting and operations.

c) Standards, emendments to published standards and interpretations that are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

The follewing new standards and amendments to published standards have been issued but are not effective for the
accounting peried beginning on or after January 1, 2011 and have not been early adopted by the Company:

IFRS 7 (Amendment], ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’ [effective for periods beginning on or affer July 1,
2011}, The amendment will promote fransparency in the reporting of franster ransactions and improve users’
understanding of the risk exposures relating o fransfers of financial assets and the effect of those risks on an
entity’s financial pasition, particularly those invalving securitisation of financial assets. The amendment will only
dffect the disclosures in the Company/s financial statements.

IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’ (effective for periods beginning on or afier january 1, 2013). This is the first part
of a new standord on clessification and measurement of financial assets that will replace 1AS 39, ‘Financial
instruments: Recognifion and measurement’. [FRS @ has wo measurement calegories: amortised cost and fair
value. All equity instruments are measured af fair value. A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost only if
the entity is holding it to collect contractual cash flows and the cash flows represent principal and interest. The
Company is yet fo assess the full impact of IFRS 9.

IFRS 12, ‘Disclosures of inferests in other entifies” |effective for periods beginning on or affer january 1, 2013).
This standard includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of iferests in other entfifies, indluding joint
amangements, associates, special purpase vehicles and other off balanoe sheet vehicles. The Company is vet
fo assess the full impact of IFRS 12.

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement’ (effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013). This standard
aims fo improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing o precise definifion of fair value and a single
source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRS. The requirements da not
extend the use of fair value accounfing but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is
dlready required or permitted by other standards within IFRSs. The Company is yet fo assess the full impact of
IFRS 13.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended December 31, 2011

IAS 1 [Amendment], ‘Presentefion of financial statements’ [effective for periods beginning on or affer July 1,
2012). The main change resuliing from this amendment is a requirement for entities fo group items presenfed
in ‘other comprehensive income” [OCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially recyded to profit or loss
subsequently [reclassification adjusiments). The amendment does not address which items are presented in
OCl. The amendment is not likely to have a significant effect on the Company's financial stotements.

IAS 19 [Revised), 'Employee benefits’ (effeclive for periods beginning on or dfter January 1, 2013). This
amendment makes significant changes fo the recognition and measurement of defined benefits pension
expense and lemination benefits and to the disclosures for all employee benefits. The changes will affect most
entilies that apply IAS 19. They could significantly change a number of performance indlicators and might also
signifieantly increase the volume of disdasures.

IAS 27 [Revised), ‘Separdte financial statements’ [effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013).
The revised standard includes the provisions on separate financial statements that are left abier the confrol
provisions of IAS 27 have been included in new IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’. The revised
standard is already applied in principle by the Company and therefore will have: no further consequences.

- |AS 28 [Revised), ‘Associates and joint ventures' [effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013).
This standard includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well as associoles, to be equily accounted
following the issue of IFRS 11, Joint armangements’. The Company is yet fo assess the full impact of IAS 28.

There are a number of other new standards, minor amendments to standards and interpretations o other published
standards that are not yet effeciive and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore have: not been presented
here.

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plantand equipment are initially stated at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciafion
and accumulated impaiment losses, if any, except freehold land and eapital workin-progress which are stated at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, it any. All expenditure connected with specific assets incumred during
installation and construction period are cartied under capital workinprogress. These are ransferred to specific assels
as and when these are ovailable for use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s camying amounts or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that fulure economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Comparny and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in the profit or loss in
the statement of comprehensive income as and when incurred.

Depreciation 1s charged o profit or loss in the stafement of comprehensive income using the siraightline method
whereby the cost of an operating asset less its estimated residual value is writien off over its esfimated useful life af
rates given in note 4.1. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if
cppropriate, of each balance sheet date.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which an asset is available for use while no depreciation is
charged for the month in which an asset is disposed off.

The gain or loss on disposal or refirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and
the camying amount of an asset is recognised in the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income in the

period of disposal.

An asset's camying amount is written down immediately ko its recoverable amount if the assef’s camying amount is
greater than its estimaled recoverable amount.
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23 Intangible assets - Computer soffware

Intangible assets are initially slafed at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisafion and
accumulated Impairment lesses, if any.

Cosks associated with mainiaining computer sofware programmes are recognised as an expense In the profit or loss
in the statement of comprehensive income as incured. Costs directly associated with acquiring software: that have
probable economic benefits exceeding one year, are recognised as an inlangible assef. Direct costs Include the
purchase cost of sofiware and relaled overhead cest. Subsequent directly atibutable costs are included in the assef's

carmying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the tiem will flow to the Company and the cost of the flem ean be measured reliably.

Computer software costs are amortised from the month when such assets are available for use on a siraightline basis
at a rate mentioned In note 5. 1.

An asset’s camylng amount Is wrilen down immediately fo its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its esimaled recoverable amount.

24 Invesiments in associates

Associates are all enfifies over which the Company has significant influence but no contrel. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity methed of accounting and are initially recognised at cost in accordance with the
requirements of [AS 28, ‘Investments in Associates’.

The Company's share of an associale’s past acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the profit or loss in the
statement of comprehensive income, and its share In the post acquisiion mavement of other comprehensive income
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. The cumulative post aequisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying value of the investment. VWhen the Company’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its inferest in the associate, induding any other unsecured receivables, the Company does not recognise future losses,
unless It has incumed obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The investments In associates’ camying amount is written down Immediately fo its recoverable amount If its camying
amount Is greater than s estimaled recoverable amount.

Unrealised gains on fransactions between the Company and ifs associte are eliminated to the extent of the
Company's interest in the associate.

2.5 Financial insiruments
2.5.1 Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets In the following categories: af falr volue through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held to maturily and availableforsale. The dlassifieation depends on the purpase for which the financial
assets were acquired, The management determines the classification of its financiol assets at the time of Inifial

recognition.
a) Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss

Financlal assets ot fair value through profit of loss are financial assets held for frading and financial assets des-
ignated upon Initial recognition as at fair value trough profit or loss. A financial asset Is classified as held for
frading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the shorterm. Assets in this ea are classified
as cument assets If expected to be setled within twelve months, otherwise, they are classified as noncument
assels.
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b) Loans and receivables

loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assefs with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quated in an active market. are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than twelve months
after the balance sheet date, which are clussified as noncument assets. The Company’s loans and receivables
ochenérprise 'frade debts’, 'loans’, 'deposits’, ‘other receivables’ and ‘cash and bank balances’ in the balanoce
shest,

¢) Held to maturity financial assets

Held to maturity financial assets are financial assets with fixed or deferminable payments and fixed maturity

with @ positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. There were no held to maturity financial assets at the
balonce sheet date.

d) Avuilable-for-sale financial assets

Availobleforsale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this cotegory or not classified
in any of the other categories. They are included in noncument assefs unless the investment matures or manager
ment intends to dispose of the investments within twelve months of the balance sheet date.

All financial assels are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a parly lo the contractual position of
the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date — the date on
which the Company commits fo purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are inifially recognised at fair value plus
fransaction costs for all financial assels not caried o foir value through profit or loss. Financial assels camied af fair
valua through profit or loss ara inifially recognised at fair value and ransaction easts are expensad to the profit or
loss in the stotement of comprehensive Income. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights fo receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been ransferred and the Company has transfered subsiantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Availableforsale financial assels and ﬂnunciargssa‘rs at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to maturity financial assets are caried ot
amorised cost using the effective interest method.

Guins of losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’
cotegory are recognised in the profit or loss in the stotement of comprehensive income within ‘other operating income
/ expenses’ in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets ot 'fair value through profit or
loss’ Ts recognised in the ﬁrch or loss in the skatement of com ive income as part of ‘cther operating income’
when the Company’s right to receive t is established. Guains or losses on sale of investments at tair value
thraugh profit or loss’ are reoognised in the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income as ‘gains and
losses from investment securifies”.

Gains or losses from changes in fair volue of monetary and nommenetary securities dlassified as avallablefor
sale are recognised in ofher com nsive income. When securities classified as availableforsale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjusiments recognised in equily are taken to profit or loss in the sialement
of comprahensiva income as ‘gains and lasses from invesiment securifies’. Interast on availobleforscle securitias
calculoted using the effective interest method is nised in the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive
income as part of ‘other operating income’. Dividends on availableforsale equily instruments are recognised in the
profit or loss in the stolement of comprehensive income as part of ‘cther operafing income’ when the Company's right
fo receive payments is established.

The: fair values ofqucted investments are based on cument bid prices. If the market for a financeial asset is not adlive
{and for unlisted sacurities], the Company measures the investments at cost less impairment in valus, if any.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objeciive evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets 1s impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as evailableforsale, a significant
or prolonged dedline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the securifies
are impaired. [ any such evidence exists for availableforsale financial assefs, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the ocquisifion cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in equity is remaoved from equily and recognised in the profit or loss in the siatement of
comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognised in the profit or lass In the statement of comprehensive income
on equily instruments classified as availableforsale are not reversed. Impairment festing of rade debts and ofher
receivables is described in note 2.8.
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2.5.2

2.5.3

2.7

28

Financial liabilities

All financidl liabilities are recognised ot the lime when the Company becomes a parly o the contractual provisions
of the Instument.

A financlal liability Is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different ferms,
or the terms of an existing liabillly are substanfially modified, such an exchange or medification Is freated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the profit or loss in the sialement of comprehensive income.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financlal assets and financial liabllities are offset and the net amount s reperted in the bolance sheet If the Company
has a legally enforceable right to setoff the recognised amounts and intends either fo seffle on a net basis or fo realise
the asset and settle the liability simulianeously.

Stock-in-trade

Stockdnrade is valued at the kower of cost, calculated on a firshin firskout basis, and net redlisable value. Cost
comprises invoiee value, charges like customs duties and similar levies and other direct costs but excludes borewing
cost, Cost for bonded stock of finished goods comprises Imvoloe value and costs incumed to date.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary 1o
make the sale.

Stockintransit 1s valued at cost comprising Involee value plus other charges incurred thereon. Provision s made for
obsolete and slow moving stockimade based on management's best estimate and Is recognised In the profit or loss

in the statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The earrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed ot each balance sheet date to determine whether there
is any indlcation of Impalment loss. If any such indicafion exists, the assef’s recoverable amount Is estimated in order
fo defermine the extent of the impaiment loss, if any. An impaimment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the assets’ carmying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assef's
fair value less cost o sell and value in use. Impaiment losses are recognised in the profit or loss in the stetement of
comprehensive Income.

Trade debis and other receivables

Trade debis and other receivables are recognised Inifially ot involce value, which approximotes fair value, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methad, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of frade debis and other recelvables Is established when there Is objective evidence that the
Company will not be able o collect all the amount due aecarding fo the original terms of the receivable. Significant
financial difficuliies of the debiors, probability that the debtor will enter bankrupicy and default or delinguency in

nis are considered Indicators that the Irade debt Is impaired. The amount of provision is cha to prefit
or loss [r;Eﬁ'se statement of comprehensive income. Trade debts and other receivables considered imecoverable are
written-oft.

Bxchange gains and losses arising on franslation in respect of frade debis and other receivables in foreign currency
are odded fo the camying amount of the respective receivables.
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2.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are canied in the balance sheet ot cost. For the purposes of the statement of eash flows,
cash and cash equivalents Include cash in hand, balances with banks, shorerm loans and shorkerm unning
finances utilised under markup arrangements.

2.10 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equily and recognised at their foce value.
2.1 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
and Itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed of each balanee sheet date and adjusied to reflect the
current best estimate.

Provision for asset retirement obligation Is based on current requirements, fechnology and price levels and the present
value is ealeulated using amounts discounted over the useful economic life of the assets. The liability is recagnised
{together with a comespoending amount as part of the reloted propeny; plant and equipment] once an obligation
erysiallizes in the period when a reasonable eslimate can be made. The effects of changes resulting from revisions
fo the timing or the amount of the original estimate of the provision are Incomporated on a prospective basis.

2.12 Leases
2.12.1 Finance leases

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease are acoounted for at the lower of present value of minimum lease
payments and fair value of the assets aequired on lease. Outstanding obligations under the lease less finance costs
dllocated to future periods are shown under liability.

Finance costs are dllocated fo the perlods of the lease term so as fo produce a consfant periodic rate of financlal
cost on the remaining balance of principal liability for each period.

2.12.2 Operdting leases

leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are refained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases, Payments made under operafing leases are recognised in the profit or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income on a sfraightine basis over the peried of the lease.

2.13 Trade and other payables

Trade end other payables are recognised inifially of fair value and subsequently measured ot amortised cost, using
the effective Interest method. Bxchange gains and losses arising on franslation in respect of liabilifies in foreign
currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective liabilities.

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially ot fair value, net of transaction costs incumed. Borowings are subsequently stoted
ot amortised cost and any difference between the proceeds [net of transaction costs) and the redemption value s
recognised In the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective Inferest method.

Borrowings are classified as curment liabiliiies unless the Company has an uncondifional right to defer setlement of
the licbility for ot least twelve months ofier the balance sheet date.
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Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are eapitalised during the peried of fime thet is
required to complete and prepare the asset for ifs infended use.

Other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the siafement of comprehensive income in the pericd in
which they ariss.

2.15 Refirement and other service benefits
2.15.1 Retirement benefits

Except for certain expatriales for whom benefits are provided by membership of their respeciive Shell refirement
bene% funds, staff retirement benefits Include: by ° e

i) Approved funded gratuity and pension schemes

Approved funded gratuity schemes for manogement and unienized siaff and conirbutory pension scheme for
management and norcontributory pension scheme for unionized sioff. Contributions are mode o these schemes
on the basis of aciuarial recommendations. The acfuarial volualions are carried out using the Proj Unit Credit
Method. Actuarial gains and losses are accounted for using the comidor methad. Under this methed, to the extent that
any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss excesds 10% of the greater of the present value of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plon assets, that portion is recognised in the profit or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the
plan.

ii) Approved coniributery provident fund

Appraved contfribulery pravident funds for all employees. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Company
and the employee at the rafe of 4.5% of basic salary and charged to profit or loss in the sialement of comprehensive

income.

iii) Un-funded post refirement medical benefits

Undunded refirement medical benefits for all management staff. Annual provision is made in the financial
statements tor this scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The acluarial valuation is carried out annual

using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses are accounted for using the corridor method.
Under this methed, fo the exent that any cumulative un nised actuarial gain o loss exceeds 10% of the greater
of the present volue of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets, that portion is recognised in
the profit or lass in the stalement of comprehensive income over the expected average remaining working lives of the

smployees participating in the plan.

I:;Iﬁramen'r benefits are payable to staff on complefion of prescribed qualifying periods of service under these
emes.

2.15.2 Employees’ compensated absences

The Company accounts for the liability in respect of employess’ compensated absences in the year in which these
are eamed. Provision to cover te obligation under the scheme is made based on the cument leave entifiements of

employees and by using the current salary levels of employees.
2.16 Taxation
2.16.1 Current
Provision for current foxafion is based on the faxable income for the year, defermined in accordance with the
prevailing law for faxation on income, using prevailing fox rofes, The charge for cumrent fox also indudes fax credits

and adjustments, where considered necessary, for prior years determined during the year or otherwise considered
necessary for such years,
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2.7

2.18

2.19

2.16.2 Deferred

Defered income fax is recognised using the liability method on all temporary differences between the earrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting pumposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Defemed tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences only to the exdent that it is probable that
future teoeeble profits will be available ageinst which the deduciible temporary differences, unused tax losses and kax
credits can be ulllized. Deferred tax asset Is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related fax
benefit will be redlised. Deferred tex liabiliies are recognised for all the taxable temporary differences.

Defened tax assets and liabiliies are measured af the fox rates that are expecled to apply to the period when the
asset Is realised or the liability Is sefled, based on the tox rates that have been e or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax Is charged or credited in the profit or loss in the sketement of comprehensive
income.

Foreign currencies

Transactions In foreign cumencies are accounted for In Pokistani Rupees at the rates prevailing on the date of
fransaction. Monetary assets and liabilifies in foreign eumrencies are ranslated Info Rupees of the rates of exchange
which approximate those prevailing ot the balance sheet date. Bxchange differences are recognised in the: profit or

loss in the statement of comprehensive income.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow o the Company and the

revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue Is measured at the fair value of consideration recelved or receivable on
the following basis:

Soles are recorded when signilicant risks and rewards of ownership of goods have passed to customers which
colncides with dispatch of goods to customers.

= Norruel retall Income and other revenue lincluding license fee) Is recognised on an oocrual basls.
Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s right to recelve the dividend Is established.

Functional and presentation currency

fiems included In the financial siafements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment In
which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company’s
functional and preseniation cumency.

Dividend distribution and appropriation fo reserves

Dividend distribution and appropriation fo reserves are recognised In the financial siatements in the period in which
these are approved.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are confinually evaluated and are based en historieal experience and other factors,
Including expeciations of future events that ane believed fo be reasonable under the circumstancas. The Company
makes esfimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulling accounting estimeates will, by defintion, seldom

ual the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment fo the carmying amounts of assets and liabilities within the nest financial year are as follows:
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3.1 Properiy, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rates of depreciation / amortisation, useful lives and residual values
used In the calculation of depreciation / amertisation on an annual basls. Further, where applicable, an estimate of
recoverable amount of assets is mode for possible impairment on an annual basis.

3.2 Stock-in-trade

The Company reviews the net realisable value of siockintrade to assess any diminution in the respeciive carying
values. Net redlisable value is defermined with reference fo estimated selling price less esfimated expenditures fo
make the sales.

3.3 Income taxes

In making the estimates for income laxes payable by the Company, the management looks at the applicable law and
the decisions of appellate authorities on certain Issues in the past. Further, the Company uses financial projections,
which are prepared using assumptions for key economic and business drivers, to assess realisability of deferred tax

34 Provision for refirement and other service benefit obligations

The present value of these obligations depends on a number of factors that are defermined on actuarial basis using
a number of assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the camying amount of these obligations.
The present values of these obligations and the underlying assumptions are disclosed In nofes 35.1.1 and 35.2.1

3.5 Provision for impairment of frade debts and other receivables

The Company assesses the recoverability of iis irade debis and other receivables if there is objective evidence that
the Company will not be able to collect all the amount due according to the criginal terms. Significant financicl
difffeulties of the deblors, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptey and default or delinqueney in payments are
considered Indlcators that the frade debt is impaired.

3.6 Asset retirement obligation
The Company reviews the timing and ameunt of future esqpenditures annually together with the Inferest rafe fo be used

lo discount the future cash flows. The estimaled fulure expenditure is determined in accordance with local condifions
and requirements and on the basis of estimates provided by the Parent Company’s technical staff,

2011 2010
Note (Rupees ‘000)
4, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operafing assets, at net book
value 4.1 5,606,489 6,202,640
Copital workimprogress 47 1,128,102 344,304
6,734,591 6,544,944
Prowialon for impairment 48 (82,571) (44,171}
6,652,020 6,502,773
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2011 2010
Note - (Rupees ‘000
4.2 The depreciation charge for the year has been (Ru )
dllocated as follows:
Cost of products sold 25327 21,759
Adminisirative expenses 20 701,448 777 417
726,773 799,176
43 Company’s assets include fanks, dispensing pumps and electrical equipments having a cost of Rs. 1,089,636

thousand (2010: Bs. 1,193,092 thousand) which have been installed af dedler sites. Due fo the significant number

of declers involved, the particulars of the assets not in the possession of the Company as required by the Fourth
Schedule fo the Compoanies Ordinance, 1984 have not been disclosed here.

4.4 The following assets with a net book value exceeding Rs. 50,000 were disposed off during the year:

Cast Accomulated NetBook Saoles Moda of Particulars of
Value Procseds Disposal
(Rupess ‘000) ——
Bulldings on leasshod kand 310 (Fe's] 144 144 Negatiation MNote 4.5
Tonks and pipslnes 4,720 1,641 3,079 3,080 Negetiation Note 4.5
Dispensing pumps 11,405 7,145 4,260 4,262 Negotiation Nale 4.5
Relling stock and vehices 1,354 A27 927 1,066 Company policy Adnan Moosa (Beative)
1,354 569 785 982 Company policy Zarak Khan (Ewcutive)
1,354 569 785 982 Company policy Rashid Ahmad (Ewcutive)
1,239 325 214 1,007 Company policy Azriar Mobed [Execufive}
1,239 325 914 1,038 Company policy ~ Aamir Faiz (Execuive)
1,200 317 892 1,013 Companypdliey ~ Mohasn Fosfima (Execuive)
2,750 2477 273 1,623 Campany policy Amr Ahmed {Exacufive)
1,005 B13 192 503 Company policy Khalid Siddin {Exeauive)
Q25 &03 322 590 Company policy Zulfikar K. Shaikh (Executive)
796 607 189 698 Company policy Syed Muddabir Abbas
Zoid: [Bxecutive)
1,725 1,006 489 1,132 Comporypiey  Shohaod Mohsin {Brecuive]
1,269 900 369 730 Company policy Igrar Hussain |Eec tive)
1,269 693 576 857 Companypolicy  Avsheska Malik (Execuiivel
1,269 693 576 888 Company policy Sybicin Badami {Brecutive)
1,389 883 506 858 Company policy Zeeshan Unally [Fxecutive}
1,269 668 601 857 Company policy Erum Kheija (Executive)
1,389 Q05 48B4 B&8 Company pdlicy Javed Akhiar [Execuiive]
|, BO9 1,028 /81 1,153 Campany policy John Fisher (Exacutive)
1,259 252 1,007 1,064 Company policy Heossan Roaa
Bekharl |Exacufive)
1,270 106 1,164 1,207 Company policy Aban C_ Tengm {Ecscutive)
Electricnl, mechanical and
fires fighting equipments 8,959 4,483 4,476 4,480 MNegotiation MNote 4.5
Fumiture, office equipment
ond ofher assefs 240 BS 154 154 Negatiafion Note 4.5

4.5 These represent disposals fo various refail site dealers. Due lo the significant number of dedlers involved, partieulars

of the disposal above Rs. 50,000 as required by the Fourth Schedule of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 have
not been disclesed here.
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4.6

5.1

52

Disposals / write offs of fixed ossels include assets writen off having a cost of Rs. 434,708 thousand
[2010: Rs. 285,163 thousand) and a net book value of Rs. 148,104 thousand (2010: Rs. 143,447 thousand).
Due fo the significant number of line items involved, particulars of the write offs, above Rs. 50,000 as required by the
Fourth Schedule of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 have not been disclosed here.

Capital work-in-progress

Buildings on leaseheld land
Tanks and pipelines
Pic:nl and machinery
nsing pumps

olling stock and vehicles
E?ech’ml mechanical and fire fighting equipments
Fumiture, office uipment and other cssets
Capital stores and spares

Provision for impairment

Belance at the begmmng cf the yeor
Provision made during the

Amounts written off during Fyear
Balance at the end of the year

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - Computer software

As at January 1

Cost

Accumulated amerisation
Net baok value

Year ended December 31
Opening net book value
Additians at cost

Amortisation charge
Closing net bock value

As ot December 31
Cost

Accumulated amordisation
MNet book value

Note

30

52
5.1 and 29

2011 2010
(Rupees "000)
587,451 50,252
338,305 126,333
175,269 7 545
- 2,091
- 1 7 Q75
26,466 136,883
611 1,221
- 2,004
1,128,102 344 304
4417 88,811
33,400 -
- {44,640)
82,571 44171
1,933,497 353,568
(253,790) (63,995)
1,679,707 289 573
1,679,707 289,573
- 1,579,929
(358,602) [189,7%5)
1,321,105 1,679,707
1,933,497 1,933,497
[6!2,392} (253,790)
1321,105 1,679,707

The cost is being amorfised over a period of 5 years. The remaining amortisation period of computer software is 2

to 4 years.

This represents amounts incurred by the Company in respect of implementation and deployment of its Enterprise

Resource Planning (ERP) system as part of its business process ransformation and streamline project.

- 41 | Shell Pakistan Limited



Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Dacember 31, 2011

Percentuge Amount Fmrlugu Amount
Holding (Rupees’000) Holding (Rupees/000)
Invesiment in assocate -
PakArab Pipeline Company Limited (PAPCO)
18,720,000 {2010: 18,720,000
ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each - note 6.1 26 2,744,510 26 2,542,853
Others - held as available-for-sale - of cost
Arabian Sea Counry Club Limited 500,000
[2010: 500,000 ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each 5 5,000 5 5,000
2,749,610 2,547 853
6.1 Movement of investment in associate 2011 2010
(Rupees ‘000)
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,542,853 2,307,806
Share of profit 981,817 916,887
Shore of foxation (346,626) (320,879
635,191 596,008
Dividend received (433,434) (360,961
Bolance at the end of the year 2,744,610 2,542 B53

Pak-Arab Pipeline Company Limited [PAPCO)] commenced its commercial aperations in Pakisian in March 2005
as a joint venture between PARCO and oil marketing companies fo provide fransportation services of pefroleum
products through the while oil pipeline.

The financial year end for PAPCO s June 30. Summarised financial information of PAPCO based on the lafest
unaudited financial skatlements for the six months ended December 31, 2011 and the six months ended December
31, 2010, is as follows:

2011 2010
—————(Rupees "000)
Tofal assels 22,010,759 22,408,175
Tefal liobilities 11,454,568 12,627 974

Share of confingent liabilities based on the latest financial statements of PAPCO for the six months ended December
31, 2017 amounts fo Rs. 18,505 thousand [December 31, 2010: Rs. 10,061 thousand).

Six months Six months

ended ended
December 31, December 31,
2011 2010
(Rupess ‘000)
Revenues 3,391,373 3,192,712
Total comprehensive income for the peried 1,259,608 1,198,070
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7.1

7.2

73

9.1

LONG-TERM LOANS AND
ADVANCES - Considered good

Due from Directors

Receivable within one year

Due from Executives
Receivable within one year

Due from Employees
Receivable within one year

Advances o contractors

7.1,72and 7.3
14

71,72and 7.3
14

7.2
14

2011 2010
—(Rupees ‘000)
2,681 | -
(1:399) -
1,282 e
129,725 126,005
(50,122) (48,759)
79,603 77,246
14,682 | 4,067 |
{6,228)| [3,928)
139
4,575 4,575
93,914 81,960

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of leans and advances to executives and directors

Balance ot the beginning of the year
Disbursements

Repayments

Balance ot the end of the year

2011 2010
(Rupees ‘000}
- 126,005 465 135,222
3,497 86,716 - 195,360
(816) (82,996) {465) [204,577]
2,681 129,725 - 126,005

Loans to staff are unsecured and are given for housing, purchase of malor cars / motoreycles and for ather general
purpose in acoordance with the Company’s policy and are repayable over a period of two 1o five years. Interest is
charged on leans given for housing and purchase of molor cars ot 1% per annum.

The maximum aggregate amounis due from Chief Execulive, Directors and Execufives at the end of any month during
the year were Nil (2010: Nill, Rs. 2,914 thousond [2010: Rs. 465 thousand) and Rs. 135,880 thousand (2010:
Rs. 126,005 thousand) respeciively. The loans to Direclors represent key management personnel loans outstanding
at year end.

2011 2010
Note T (Rupees ‘000)
LONG-TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Deposits 97,145 75,564
Prepayments 97,097 115,102
194,242 190,666
LONG-TERM DEETORS
longterm debtors ?.1and 13 3,732 11,442

These represent amounts due from customers in respect of which the Company has entered into agreements for
recovery of custanding balances over a peried of 1 1o 3 years.
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10.

10.1

12.

12.1

12.2

2011 2010
ESaBERES IA KRR O Note = (Rupees ‘000)

This is composed of the following:
Texable femporary difference arising in respect of:

accelerated tax depreciation {719,540) [748,048)

invesiment in associate (87,261) 66,605}

assets subject fo finance lease - (45,872)
Deductible tfemporary difference arising in respect of:

shorterm provisions 400,066 410,416

carry forwerd tax losses 10.1 1,790,551 2,438,707

liabilifies against assefs subject
o finance lease 4,752

1383816 1,993,350

Defered income tax asset is recognised for fax losses available for camyforward o the exdent that the realisation of
the related fax benefit through future faxable profits is probable. The aggregate unulilized fax losses as ot December
31, 2071 amount fo Rs. 5,444,606 thousand (2010: Rs. 7,296,481 thousand), out of which defered income tax
asset has been recognised on fox losses amounting to Rs. 5,115,860 thousand {2010: Rs. 6,967,734 theusand),
based on projedtions of fulure laxable profits of the Company. Tax losses are available for ufilization against fuure
toxable profits fill December 31, 2014.

201 2010
Note (Rupees “000)
STORES AND SPARES
Stores 15,143 20,328
Spares . 52
15,143 20,380
Provision for obsolefe stores - (5,878}
15,143 14,502
STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw and packing materials 889,352 1,000,955
Provision for impaiment 12.6 (25,000) v
864,352 1,000,955
Finished products
- in hand and in pipeline :
system 12.1, 122 and 12.4 12,204,462 | 5,813,090
- in White Oil Pipeline 12.3and 12.4 4,780,013 | 5,542 310
16,984,475 11,355,400
Prowision for impaimment 12.6 (1,605) | 17,217
16,982,870 11,347 483
17,847,222 12,348,438

Includes, Rs. 3,181,508 thousand [2010: Rs. 797,375 thousand) in respect of stockimiransit as at December 31,
2011.

During the year, expired lubricants amaunting ta Rs. 2,378 thousand {2010: Rs. 1,134 thousand) were writier-
off.
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12.3

124

12.5

126

13,

13.1

Stock in White Gil Pipeline includes 49,465 MT (2010: 43,750 MT) of High Speed Diesel which has been
maintained as line fill necessary for the pipeline to operate.

Finished goods indude debonded inventory amaunting to Rs. 9,979,516 thousand {2010: Rs. 8,333,932
thousand).

The above balance includes items costing Nil [2010: Rs. 1,441,913 thousand) which have been valued af their
net realisoble value omounting fo Nil (2010: Rs, 1,426,142 thousand).

The movement in the provision for expired / obsolete stock is as follows:

201 2010
Note (Rupees “000)
Balance at the beginning of the year 7917 11,779
Provision made during the year 26,605 797
Amounis reversed / ulilised during the year (7.917) (11,779)
Balonce ot the end of the year 26,605 7917
TRADE DEBTS
Considered good
- Secured 13.1 m,.!u‘ 255,269
- Unsecured 13.2 1,886,126 1,769,531
2,492,642 2,024,800
Considered doubtful 671,251 671,389
Trade debts - gross 3,163,893 2,696,189
Provision for impairment 13.3 {671,251) [671,389)
Trade debfs - net 2,492,642 2,024,800
The above trade debis are clossified as follows:
2011
(nate 9) Shori-ferm Total
Note (Rupees ‘000)
Trade debits - gross 16,594 3,147,299 3,163,893
Provision for impairment 13.3 (12,862) (658,389) 671,251
3,732 2488910 2492442
2010
{note 9) Short-erm Total
(Rupees ‘000)
Tiade debts - gross 27017 2,668,272 2,606,189
Provision for impairment 13.3 {(16,475) {654,214} {671,38%)
11,442 2,013,358 2,024,800

These debts are secured by way of bank guarantess and security deposits.
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13.2 Amount due from reloted party, included in frode debts, is as follows:

2011 2010
Nate (Rupees ‘000)
Shell Aviation 190,668 101,235
13.3 Provision for impairment
Balance at the beginning of the year 671,389 655,172
Prewision mode during the year 30 52,679 173,712
Amaunts reversed during the year 31 (36,702) (79,571)
Amounts written off during the year {16,115) (77,924)
Balance at the end of the year 671,251 671,389

13.4 As at December 31, 2011, trode receivables aggregating fo Rs. 133,901 fhousand {2010: Rs. 525,770
thousand] were past due but not impaired. These relate fo a number of independent customers for whom there is no
or some recent history of default, however, no losses. The ageing onalysis of hese trade receivables 1s as follows:

2011 2010
(Rupees ‘000)
Uplo 1 month 48,410 386,394
1 1o & months 35,582 69,409
More than & months 49,909 69,967
133,901 525,770

13.5 As at December 31, 2011, trade receivables of Rs. 671,251 thousand {2010: Rs. 671,389 thousand) were
impaired and provided for. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

2011 2010
Note (Rupees ‘000)———
Uplo 6 months 16,303 17,832
More than & months 654,948 653,557
671,251 671,389
14, LOANS AND ADVANCES - Considered good
Current porfion of longferm loans
due from
- Directors 7 1399 -
- Executives 7 50,122 48,759
- Employees Z 6,228 3,928
57,749 52,687
Advances o employees 8,783 23,500
66,532 76,187

Annual Report 2011 |46 »



Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

15. OTHER RECEIVABLES Note s I(m ’m}ﬂo'lo
Peiroleum development levy and other duties 15.1 2,364,502 2,143,552
Price differential claims

- on imported purchases 15.2 295,733 205733
- on high speed diesel [HSD) 15.3 747,490 747,490
- en imporied moter gasoline 15.4 1,961,211 1,091,216
Sales tax refundable 15.5 8,530,611 3,823,001
Inland freight equalisation mechanism 339,063 481,900
Service cost receivable from related parties 15.6 74,787 126,604
Service cost receivoble from associate
company - PAPCO 4,712 3,495
Stoff retirement benefit schemes 35.1.10 229,702 192,658
Matkup receivable on shorterm deposits 1,574 2,955
Temes recoverable 2412 288,896 -
Others 978 80,568
14,839,261 9,892,872
Provision for impairment {206,006) {206,006
14,633,255 2 686,866

15.1 This includes petroleum development levy recoverable amounting to Rs. 2,274,308 thousand (2010: Rs. 2,070,888
thousand| from the Federal Board of Revenue {FBR) on account of export sales. During the year, the Company has
approached the Govemment of Pakiston (GoP| and FBR for setlement of this receivable. The GoP has sought certain
information which the Company has provided and is cumrently being verified by FBR. The Company is confident o
recovery of the amount in full on completion of the verification exercise by FBR,

15.2 This represents omount receivable on account of price differential on imports and the exrefinery price on direct and
retail sales during the pericd 1990-2002.

153 This represents price differential on local / imporied purchases of HSD which was based on rates notified by GoP
o subsidise pefroleum prices by restricting the increase in prices in order to reduce the burden of ol prices on the
end consumers. Although the Company has been acfively pursuing the matter for clearance of this receivable, it has
been delayed by GoP on account of ceroin observations made in respect of it and setlement of the PARCO pipeline
fill daim as referred fo in note 24.1.4.

The Company confends that the observations are not related 1o the Company whereas the matter regarding PARCO's
pipeline fill is independent of this claim and therefore is confident of recovering the amount in hull in due course.

154 This represents the Company’s share of price differentiol claims on account of import of motor gasoline by the
Company, being the difference between their landed cost and exrefinery prices announced by Oil and Gas
Regulatory Authority (OGRA). In 2007, the Company as well as other oil marketing companies were asked in @
meeting chaired by Direcior General Cil fo import motor gasaline fo meet the increasing local demand. Accordingly,
oil marketing companies opproached the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources (MoPINR) with a proposal for
pricing mechanism whereby end consumer price of molor gasaline was proposed fo be fixed al weighied average
of exerefinery (import parity} price and landed cost of imported product. Although no response wos received from
the MaPNR, the Company aleng with ancther oil marketing company confinued fo import metor gascline on behalf
of the indusiry being confident that price differential on motor gasoline, will be setfed as per previous practice i.e.
based on the differential between exrefinery and import cost at the time of filing of carge with Customs, as imports
were being mode on MoPINR insinyctions.
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In 2009, il markefing companies approached the MoPNR requesting an expeditious seflement of these claims.
Further, the Company along with the industry also opproached MoPINR through lefter dated July 23, 2009 requesting
for.an ecrly sefilement of these claims. On Oclober 2, 2009, MoPNR requested that an audited daim be submitied
1o allow further consideration and resclution of the matter. The Company has accordingly submitted qudit reports
thereafter and for claims fill May 31, 2011.

During the year, the Company has received an amount of Rs. 454,000 thousand from GoP in respect of these
claims, The Company clong with the industry and Oll Companies Advisory Commitiee [OCAC] confinues to follow
up this matter with MoPINR and is confident of recovering this amount in full.

15.5 This principally represents sales lax refundable on account of export soles for which the Company has filed claims
with the FBR and is actively pursuing for its recovery,

15.6 Amounts due from related parties, included in cther receivables, are as follows:

2011 2010
Note ——(Rupees ‘000) ————
Shell Intemational Pefroleum Company Limited - 14,037
Shell Inferational Limited 33 17,054
Shell Netherands BV - 31,208
Shell Development & Offshore Pakistan BY 4,246 7,216
Shell Markets (Middle East] Limited 9,227 3,235
Shell Eostemn Petroleum (Pre) Limited 7416 16,024
Shell Marketing [Oman} - 3,976
Shell Gos and Power International BY - 7,108
Shell Pclska Limited 4,880 4239
Shell and Turcas Petrol A.S. - 4,987
Shell China Limited 17,353 10,041
Shell Malaysia Trading SDIN 11,835 1,995
Cihers 19,797 8,484
74,787 129,604
16. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Balances with banks
- curent aocount 1,379,652 ‘ Q85,847
- savings oocount 16,1 49,996 . 43,903
1,429,648 1,028,750
Cash in hand 8,799 15,275
1,438,447 1,045,025
16.1 Balances with banks camy interest at the rate of 5.5% (2010: 5.5%) per annum.
17. SHARE CAPITAL
17.1 Autherised capital
2011 2010 2011 2010
(Number of Shares) — (Rupees '000)
100,000,000 100,000,000 Crdinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
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17.2

173

18.
18.1

18.2

19.

Issuad, subseribed and paid-up capital
2011 2010
‘WT ‘Ing:ld“uH Tatal ‘ ‘W‘ﬂ', |Wﬂ‘ ‘ ‘
share | | share | | 2011 2010
{Number of shares) — (Rupess “000)
23,481,000 = 23,481,000 23,481,000 g 23481000  Fuly paid in cash 234,810 234810
lzzumel o fully paid
45,006,213 45006913 * 45006913 45006913 bonus shames 450,070 430,070

23A81,000 45006913 o&68487,913 23481000 45006913 85487913  Clasing balanca 504 880 &84 880

The Shell Petroleum Company Limited, United Kingdom (immediate parent], a subsidiary of Royal Dutch Shell Plc.
{ulimate parent), held 52,123,970 {2010: 52,123,970) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each at December 31,
2011.

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

The Company has entered info lease agreements with vorious leasing companies for lease of motor vehicles
including transport vans, Liabilifies under these agreements were payable by the yeor 2013 and were subject fo
finance charge ot rates ranging from 12.75% 1o 19.84% [2010: 12.75% o 19.84%)} per annum,

During the year, the Company has seffled all the liabilifies through acoslerated payments and has exercised its option
1o purchase the leased assets for Rs. 4,548 thousand.

2011 2010
ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION Note (Rupees “000)
Belance at the beginning of the yeor 187,104 212,038
Obligation booked 178 .

Reversal of liability 31 (3,638) {32,651)
Accrefion expense 32 10,707 7717
2,069 (24934

Balance at the end of the year 189,351 187,104
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 20.1 18,782,851 14,031,120
Oil marketing companies 7,607 7,607
Accrued liabiliies 2,539,936 2,247 815
Excise and customs duties and development

surcharge 80,743 106,584
Dealers’ and customers’ security

deposits 20.2 663,949 651,140
Advances received from customers 1917721 2,340,451
Provision for post refirement medical

benefits 35.2.2 41,558 36,873
Workers' welfare fund 265,463 201,025
Wiorkers' profits parficipation fund 20.3 11,441 4,193
Unclaimed dividends 107,572 112,639
Payable to the Earthquake Relief Fund 948 048
Chher labilities 204 75314 196,153

24,495,103 19,936,550
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20.1 This includes amounis due fo related parfies aggregating to Rs. 13,930,294 thousand (2010 Rs. 9,232,627
thousand). Particulars of the amaounis due are gs follows:

201 2010
—(Rupees ‘000)
Pak-Arab Pipeline Company
Limited {Associaled Company) - 35,490
Pakistan Refinery Limited 1,092,366 1,439,637
Shell Intemational Pefroleumn Company Limited 4,913,082 3772032
Shell Infemational Treding Middle East 6,543,749 2,345,283
Shell Lubricants Supply Company 459,940 Q46,06]
Shell Brands International AG - 292,086
Shell Intemational Limited &8,214 7,181
Shell Infemational BY 151,462 139,445
Shell Information Technology 285,180 111,242
Shell Eastern Trading (P} Limited 48,005 5,394
Shell Deutschland Oil GmbH 10,819 2,448
Shell Business Servicg Centre 94,507 45,264
Shell Infemational Limited - SRES 48,722 39,809
Shell Shared Services |Asial BY 125,940 15,150
Shell & Turcas Petrol A.S. 16,060 12,141
Shell People Services Asia SDN BHD 16,974 Q475
Other related parties 45,274 13,580
13,930,294 Q,232,627
20.2 The security deposits are norinterest bearing and are refundable on termination of contracts,
2011 2010
20.3 Workers’ profits participation fund Note —  (Rupees ‘000)

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,193 Q909
Allocation for the year 30 119,051 131,476
123,244 141,385
Amount poid during the year (111,803) (137,192)
Balance at the end of the year 11,441 4,193

204 Other liabilities include Rs. 49,044 thousand (2010: Rs. 130,421 thousand) in respect of termination benefits
payable to employees under a staff redundancy plan finalised during 2009, Termination benefits to be paid through
post refirement benefit funds have been accounted for in the funds valuation as disclosed in note 35 1o the financial

stotements.
201 2010
2, ACCRUED MARK-UP (Rupees “000)
Markup accrued on;
- shorHerm running finances utilised under
markup amangements 207,151 54,576
- shortem loans 10,494 31,774
217,645 86,350
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22,
2.1

24.1.1

24.1.2
24.1.21

SHORT-TERM RUNNING FINANCES UTILISED UNDER MARK-UP ARRANGEMENTS ~ Secured

The facilifies for shorHerm running finances available from varicus banks aggregate to Rs. 19,480,000 thousand
[2010: Rs. 19,890,000 thousand). The rates of markup range from Re. 0.3433 10 Re. 0.4216 per Rs. 1,000
per day (2010: Re. 0.3937 fo Re. 0.4485 per Rs. 1,000 per day). The purchase prices are payable on various
dates by Octaber 30, 2012. These amangements are secured by hypothecation of the Company's stockinfrade,
irade debis and other receivables.

SHORT-TERM LOANS - Securad

The loans have been obfained from various banks and eamy markup at rafes ranging from 12.33% fo 13.27%
{2010: 13.70% to 14.00%) per annum. The loans are repayable by January 13, 2012. These loans are secured
by hypothecation of the Company’s stockintrade, trade debts and other receivables.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies
Infrastructure fee

The Sindh Finance Act, 1994, prescribed the imposifion of an infrasiuciure fee at the rate of 0.5% of the C&F value
of all goods entering o leaving the province of Sindh via sea or air.

The Company and several others challenged the levy in conslitutional pefitions before the High Court of Sindh. These
petitions were dismissed as, during their pendency, the nature of the levy was changed by the Govemment of Sindh
through an Crdinance. The Company and others therefore filed civil suits in the High Court of Sindh challenging the
amended Ordinance. However, these suits were also dismissed in Oclober 2003. Al the plainiiffs preferred infro-
court appedals against the dismissal. The infrrcourt appeals were decided by the High Court in September 2008
wherein it was held that the levy is valid and collectable only from December 12, 2006 onwards and not prior to
this date. Being aggrieved by the said judgment, both the Company and the Government of Sindh filed separate
appeals before the Supreme Court of Pakistan. During the year the Government of Sindh, uncondifionally withdrew
its appeals on the plea that the Sindh Assembly hv:n:i‘f:l islated the Sindh Finance (Amendment] Act, 2009, lewing
infrastucture fee with refrospective effect from 1994. ﬁcwever, the Supreme Court of Pakistan, in view of the new
legislation, directed the Company and others to file fresh petitions fo challenge the some before the High Court and
set aside the earlier order of the High Court.

The High Court on fresh petitions filed, passed an interim order directing that any bank guarantee / security furnished
for consignments cleared upto December 27, 2006 are fo be returned onr:I for periad thereafter guarantees or
securifies fumished for consignments cleared are 1o be encashed fo the exdent of 50% and the remaining balance
is 1o be retuined fill the disposal of petiions. For future clearancas the Company is required 1o clear the goods on
paying 50% of the fee amount in and fumishing a guaraniee / securily for the balance amount.

Subsequent 1o the orders of the court the Company has reviewed iis position and without acknowledging it as a
debt now estimates the aocumulated lew up to December 31, 2011 at Rs, 30,993 thousand (2010: Rs, 53,300
thousand). However, the eventual cbligaion on acoaunt of the aggregate fee, if any, cannot be asceriined
presenfly because of uncertainty In relation to the extent of iis application o the Company. For these reasons based
on legal advice obtained, no provision has baen made in the financial stafements against the levy as the Company’s
management expects a favourable oulcome.

Taxahon

During the vear, the Company received orders for the tax years 2004 to 2007, 2009 and 2010 roising a
demand of Rs. 294,233 thousand [including default surcharge amounting fo Rs. 114,924 thousand} in respedt of
these years by holding the Company as an assessee in default for not withholding fox on rebates given to pump
operalors, declers G:E nondealers on sales made fo them during these years on the grounds that the rebates given
wera in the natute of prize for promotion of sales by the Company on which the Company failed to withhcld 1ax as
required under Secfion 156 ot the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO 2001). Against this demand the Company,
based on the advice of ifs fax consuliant, has paid an amount of Rs. 179,309 thousand under the kax amnesty
scheme announced by the FER through SRO 647(1)/2011 daled June 25, 2011 to aveid default surcharge and

penalties.
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The Company has filed appeals against these demands with the Commissicner Inland Revenue (CIR) [Appedls)
where the initial hearings have been completed and decision from CIR is pending. Further, for fox year 2008 the
Company received a show cause nofice on similar grounds. The Company has filed @ constitutional petition with the
High Court for this year and hos obiained a siay from further proceedings by deposiing an amount of Rs. 16,388
thousand and furnishing @ guarantee of Rs. 7,867 thousand.

However, the Company, based on the merits of the case and on the advice of ifs tax consultant, out of the above
demand has provided an amount of Rs. 19,854 thousand in the financial stotements, representing its best estimate
of the liability @ 10% under Section 156 A of the [TO 2001, on rebates to pump operators. Under Section 156
A of the ITO 2001, tox is required fo be withheld of 10% of the amount of any commission or discount allowed on
pefroleum products sold fo pump operalors. The management is confident that the eventual ouicome of the matter
will be in its fovour, accordingly no provision has been made against the remaining balance of Rs. 159,455
thousand. The payments made against the demand o the extent considered recoverable have been induded in
other receivables os reflecied on the balance sheet in the financiol stalements.

24.1,2.2 During the yeor, the Company received a demand from fax quthorities in respect of tox year 2008 omounting to
Rs. 735,109 thousand. The demand principally arose due 1o addifion made by assessing officer in respect of
allocation of common expenses and toxing the reversal of provision for impaiment in rade and other receivables.
Further, assessing cfficer has also discllowed the credit for minimum tax amouniing to Rs. 482,685 thousand paid
in earier year and setoff against tox liability for the tox year 2008. The Company in response to the demands has
depcsilecri amount of Rs. 120,000 thousand and has filed an eppeal with the Commissioner Inland Revenue
{CIR) (Appeals) where the Company, based on the advice of fs fax consultont expects o favourable outcome and
as such has not made any provision there against. The payments made against the demand have been included in
other receivables os reflected on the balance shest in the financial siatement,

24.1.3 Sadles tox and federal excise duty (FED)

24,1.3.1 During the year, the iox authorities after conducting sales tax and federal excise audit for period July 2008 1o June
2009 and post refund oudit for peried Seplember and October 2008 raised sales tax and federal excise duty
demands amounting to Rs. 1,843,529 thousond through several orders. The demands primarily arose on acoount
of [§) disallowing inpul fax against zero rated supplies; (i) levying FED on license fee, group service fee and frade
mark and manifestation fes; (i) levying sales tox on difference in output sales tax as per efum and financial
statements; and [iv) sales fax on lubricants paid on the value of supply instead of refail price as menfioned on packs.
The Company in response fo the oforementioned orders has filed oppeals and sought sioy against he demands with
the Appellate Tribungl Inlond Revenue [ATIR] and Commissioner Inlkand Revenue [Appeals] [CIR|A]] where one of the
appeals has been heard by the ATIR and order is awaited, Further, ATIR has also gronted stay against recovery of
the demands. The appeal and stay application filed with CIR{A} is pending hearing.

The Company with respect fo the merits of the case based on the advice of ifs tax consultant and legal opinion
obigined, expects a favourable outcome on the matter and accordingly no provision has been made in this respect

in these financial statements.

24.1.3.2 Subsequert to the year end, the Company has received an order from Model Cusioms Collectorate, Hyderabad
roising sales fox demand of Rs, 46,838 thousand, without specifying the basis of computation, on goods imported
by levying further sales fox @ 2% representing minimum value addifion under Subsection 5 of Section 3 read with
Section 7A of the Sales Tox Act, 1990 and Chapter X of the Sales Tax Special Procedure Rules, 2007. Further, the
Company has also received show cause nofices from other Model Customs Collectorates with a potential demand
of Rs. 4,775,814 thousand, the basis of computation of which has not been specified. The Company is of the view
that the sales lax on minimum value addifion is not applicable as OMCs are manuleciurers of lubricants and other
products and the prices of POL products imparted by them for sale in the couniry are administered under a special
pricing amangement agreed with the Government.
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The FBR has issued directives resticling cclleciorates from any recovery actions and has also issued a nofification
dated February 10, 2012 confirming that value addition sales fox is not to be charged on POL products whose
prices are regulated under special pricing arrangement by the GoP or regulatery authority working under the GoP.
The Company is of the opinion that OMCs are alsc nof required to charge value addition sales toex on unregulated
products and is confident that revised nofification in this respect will be issued for which it will be approaching
FBR along with the inclustry, Further, in the event the Compony is required to make a payment in this respect, it is
Company's contention that it will be able to claim the amount paid as input tax except for default surcharge which
connot be computed at this siage. Accordingly, no provision has been mode in this respect in these financicl
stalements.

24.1.4 PARCO pipeline fill

The MoPMNR has made a claim relating to the loan amanged by the Government of Pakisian o the Company o
finance the initial fil of the Pak-Arob Refinery limited (PARCQ) Pipeline. MoPNR has calculated the Company's
liability by applying the price prevailing on August 11, 2000 fo the quantity of fuel supplied at the time of initicl
fill

The Company maintains that its liability is limited only to the extent of Rs, 78,164 thousand (2010; Rs. 78,164
thousand| which is based on the price prevailing ot the fime of the inilial fill and has been fully paid in March
2007,

The claim, if colculated on August 11, 2000 price os indicated by MoPNR, would emaount fo an addiiongl liability
of Rs. 215,836 thousand. Based on legal advice obiained, the management is confident that its liability in this
respect amounted fa Rs, 78, 164 thousand which has been paid and consequently no provision has been made for
the additional demand raised by MoPINR.

24.1.5 Others

The amount of ather claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt as ot December 31, 2011 aggregate
approximately Rs, 2,402,630 thousand (2010; Rs, 1,921,096 thousand). This includes claims by refineries,
amourling to Rs. 996,554 thousand {2010: Rs. 996,554 thousand] in respect of delayed payment charges. The
Compony does nat acknowledge the doim for late payment charges as the deloyed payment to refineries arose
due to the liquidity crisis faced by il markefing companies over the past few years caused by nonsetlement of price
differential claims by the Govemment of Pakistan,

24,2  Commiimenis

24,2,1 Copital expenditure contracted for but not incured as ot December 31, 2011 amounted fo opproximately
Rs. 308,517 thousand (2010: Rs. 196,710 thousand).

24.2.2 Commiiments for renials of assefs under cperafing lease agreements os at December 31, 2011 amounted 1o
Rs. 2,822,905 thousand [2010: Rs, 2,361,355 thousand] poyoble as follows:

2011 2010
{(Rupees ‘000)
Not loter fhan one year 152,284 147,548
Later than one year and not later than five years 638,394 584816
loter than five years 2,032,227 1,628,992
2,822,905 2,361,356
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24.2.3 Postdaled cheques have been deposiled with the Collecior of Cusioms Port Qasim and Karachi Port Trust in
accordance with the Customs’ Act, 1969 as an indemnity to adequately discharge the liability for the duties and toxes
leviable on imports, as required under the Finance Act, 2005. As ot December 31, 201 1, the value of these cheques
amounted to Rs, 4,927,938 thousand {2010; Rs. 6,657,745 thousand), The maturity dotes of these cheques extend

27,

7.1

to June 29, 2012 {2010: June 27, 2011).

lefters of credit and bank guarantees outstanding at December 31, 2011 amount to Rs. 4,441,046 thousand

[2010: Rs, 4,220,825 thousand).

Note
SALES (INCLUSIVE OF SALES TAX)

local sales
Export sale
Gross sales
Trade discounts and rebales

OTHER REVENUE
licence fee charged to dealers
COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD

Opening sfock of raw and
packing materials
Raw and packing materials purchosed
Closing stock of raw and packing materials 12
Raw and packing materials consumed
Manutaciuring expenses
Cost of products manufactured
Opening stock of finished products
Finished products purchased
Duties and levies 271
Closing stock of finished products 12

Duties and lavies

Pefroleum development levy
Customs and excise duly

Inland freight equalisation margin
Others

2011 2010
{Rupees "000)

217,147,625 [197,597,008
| 31,324,480 | 27313827
248,472,105 224,910,835
(965,568) (1,097,243)
247,506,537 223,813,592
550,168 406,520
1,000,955 818,939
7,049,537 6,117,414
(864,352) (1,000,955)
7,186,140 5,935,398
230,927 201,654
7,417,067 6,137,052
11,347,483 12,257,779
190,444,859 153,358,681
14,442,101 24,997,124
(16,982,870) [11,347,483)
206,668,670 185,403,153
7,285,712 17,744,710
2,176,507 1,886,442
4,890,945 5,321,917
88,967 44 055
14,442,131 24997124
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2011 2010
28. DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES Note — (Rupees ‘000)——
Salaries, wages and benefits 28.1 1,213,495 1,160,149
Staff troining 7,100 9,802
Stores and materials 31,082 44 271
Fuel ond power 60,052 63,218
Rent, taxes and ufilities 283,516 201,192
Repairs and maintenance 331,694 293,193
Insurance 87,266 Q1,791
Travelling 219,013 182,578
Advertising and publicity 329,815 185,485
legal and professional charges 136335 107,303
Communicalion and stafionery 38,890 24,020
Computer expenses 44,594 21,050
Storage and cther charges 181,734 98,529
Others 67,294 41,174
3,032,002 2,614,664
Hondling and storoge charges recovered {46,498) [30,968)
Secondary fransporiation expenses 1,155,532 1,940,362
4,141,036 4,524,058
281 Salories, woges and benefits include Rs. 138,003 thousand (2010: Rs. 151,067 thousand) in respect of sioff
refirement benefits,
201 2010
29. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note (Rupees ‘000)
Salaries, wages and benefits 29.1 245,235 556,974
Staff training 8,916 3,678
Stres and materials 6,832 19,088
Fuel and power 20,788 33,584
Rent, foxes and ufilifies 8,468 18,592
Repairs and maintenance 18,334 33,014
Insurance 4,941 5,278
Travelling 54,488 41,228
Adverising and publicity 7,684 2,419
Technical service fee 1,037,354 1,032,223
Trade marks and manifesiations
licence fee 222,815 183,880
legal and professional charges 253,941 232,214
Communication and stafionery 384,102 378,314
Computer expenses 199,488 187,717
Deprecialion - operating assefs 4.2 701,446 777417
Amortisation - intangible assefs 5 358,602 189,795
3,542,434 3,695,715
Costs recovered under Service level
Agreement from related parties (70,987) (15210
3,471,447 3,679,805

29.1 Salories, wages and benefits include Rs. 33,021 thousand (2010: Rs. 72,526 thousand] in respect of stoft
refirement benefits,
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2011 2010
J0. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Note — (Rupees ‘000)——
Workers' prolits parficipation fund 20.3 119,051 131,476
Workers' welfare fund 64,438 49,961
Bxchange loss 296,305 245,078
Provision for impaiment of frade debts 13.3 52,679 173,712
Provision for impaiment of operating assets 48 38,400 -
loss on disposal of operafing assets - 4,052
Wite off of operafing assels 148,104 Q8 G22
Audifors’ remuneration 30,1 4,617 4,693
Donations 302 22,337 30,695
745,931 738,589
30.1 Auditors’ remuneration
Auditfee 2970 2,700
Fee for substanfiating Inland Freight
Equalisation Margin 492 540
Audit of refirement benefit funds 275 190
Special cerfifications and sundiry
advisory services 452 @03
Qut of pocket expenses 428 360
4,617 4,693
30.2 Interest of the Direclors or their spouses in the donations made during the year is as follows:
Name of Donse and address  Names of interested Direclors and nature 2011 2010
of intarast — (Rupees "000)
Shell LiveVWIRE Trust M. Sarim Shetkh / Mr. Zaivi]i lsmall 2,000 2,000
{Shell House, & Ch, bin Abdullah - Chairman Board of
Khaliquzzaman Road, Trustess
Karachi) M. Rafi H. Basheer - Trusiee
{2010: Mr. Zaivi]i Ismail bin Abdullah -
Chalrman Board of Trustees
M. Gary Fisher - Trusiee
M. Rafi H. Basheer - Trustes)
The Lenson Rahmatulla M. Zaivifi lsmail bin Abdulioh - Trusies 2,000 3,000
Benevolent Trust M, Farrokh K. Copiaiin - Trustes
[37C, Phose I, Sunset {2010: M. Zaiviji lsmail bin
Lane No. 4, DHA, Karachi) Abdullah - Trustee
M. Farrokh K. Capiain - Trusies)
The Kidney Cenre Post M. Sarim Sheikh / M. Zaiviji lsmail 1,000 6,000
Croduate Training Insfifule bin Abdullah - Member, Board
(172/R, Rafiqui Shaheed of Gavemors
Road, Karachi] M. Nasser N. §, Jofter - Member, Board
of Govemors

{2010: Mr. Zawiji lsmail bin
Abdullah - Member, Board of Govemors)
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a1. OTHER OPERATING INCOME Note

Income frem hinancial assets / liabilities
Reversal of provision for impairment
of rade debts 13.3
liabilities no longer payable written back
Markup on shorterm deposits

Income from nen-financial assets

Gain on disposal of operaling assets

Reversal of asset refirement obligation 19
Sundrigs

32. FINANCE COSTS

Bank charges
Accretion expense 19
Markup on shorterm running finances,
shorterm loons and longterm loans
Finance charge on ligbilities against assets
subject o finance lease

33.  TAXATION

Current

for the year
- final tex
= minimum fumcaer tax

for prior years
Defered

33.1 Relationship between tax expense
and accounting profit

Accounting profit before toation
Toxx rate

Tax on accounting profit

Tox effect of income under final tox regime

Tax impact on account of lower fax rafe on
share of profit of associate

Prior years charge

Minimum tax

Write off of camyforwerd leosses

Chhers

Tax expense for the year
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2011 2010
(Rupees ‘000)
36,702 7% 571
- 213,355
26,931 52471
24,252 -
B, 638 32,651
74,621 143 400
171,144 527 448
217,027 186,790
10,707 777
1,866,644 1,065,444
1,505 4,726
2,095,883 1,264,677
394,588 336,044
895,704 751,011
1,290,392 1,087,055
26,801 e
609,534 341,448
1,926,727 1,428,503
2,832,717 3,044,085
5% 35%
991,451 1,065,430
169,464 {353,998}
{158,798) (149,002)
26,801 -
895,704 751,011
- 115,062
2,105 -
1,926,727 1,428,503
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2011 2010
34.  EARNINGS PER SHARE (Rupees “‘000)
34.1 Basic
Profit after taxation affributable
to ordinary shareholders 905,990 1,615,582
No. of Shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year 68,487,913 68,487,913
Rupees
Eamings per share 13.23 23.59

34.2 Diluted

There were no comveriible potential ordinary shares in issue as at December 31, 2011 and December 31,
2010.

35. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

35.1 Pension & Gratuity
As mentioned in nole 2.15, the Company operales funded gratuify and pension schemes for all its employees.
Contributions are mode fo these schemes on the basis of actuarial recommendations, The latest actuarial valuation
was carried out as ot December 31, 2011.

35.1.1 Actuarial assumphons

The following significant assumpfions were used in the valuation of these schemes:

2011 2010
—— % per annum ——

- Bxpeded rate of increase
in future salaries 10.75 12.00
- Discount rale 13.00 14.25
- Bpected rate of refum
on plan assels 13.00 14.25
35.1.2 Baolonce sheet reconciliation
201 2010
Monogement Mon-Maonogermest Yotal Maonogemant Man-Manogamant Sokal
Posion  Gromiky  Pension | Gromiry Pesion  Gromity  Pension  Gromulty
(Rupess “000) {Rupses 0030}
Fairvabe of plon
s -noe 3513 2083112 (132408 11701 3158 21045583 1805018 22 202 10034 B5246 1678118
Preserivobe of dined
bensitobigaion-noe 35.1.4  [LADMBAS] (303.347) - 1028 (1999208 (1439691 [12374 5 B1.08a1 [R013153
Supks / b} A5B267 (35778 MO0 1211 463B 16537 45 1002 24185 135034
Acurid lrel / b o ke
g ke picck n
amorkres wih he Componys
ook (282 A7 B81) &313 (58388 74012 WIR ZBS @250 10B1%8
Pt / ficbily in respecdl

st redrement beneft schemes JTO0S (eAFE) 110D 18645 (11,938 239339 [BOBF 977 20935 {26,838
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3513 Movwment in the foir volus of plon omels
20Mm 2010
Manrogesment Mon-Manogemant Managomon? Mor-Management Totd
Pension Grotvity Pension Grotuity Pension  Grotity Pemsion  Grohuity
{Rupees ‘000) (Rupees “000)
Fearvolus o plon ceeets ot he
begning e year 1805018 (D07 10038 85268 LATRII8 1411408 73EM B700 B34l 1777480
Prpacied mlm on plon omes By 10773 1,290 10799 238008 174140 1.500 1051 Q747 188838
Conirtauion by the Compony 05,508 A48 - ARLAT ] G8.018 AT - & 170554
Conkuion by e employees 130 - - nzzm - = : 1772
Beriis poid dung feyeor (101,319 (141,000 - 18325) (384 (115583 145231 <] 24D (64273
Adioricd goirs / boeser) on
amek 7068 18191 225 3418 73,765 25848 788 {5,885 43516
Foirvoius of plon ceacts ot he
end chbayecr 2083112 (132408 11,701 83,138 2045583 1805018 172,707 10036 B5764 1878118
3514  Movermsnt in the present voius of delined benefit abligafions
2om 2010
Manogement MNon-Manogement Manopement Non-Manogement Torad
{Rupses 000) (Rupass 000)
Preeertvohiaot
ahobgmigdteya 159891 312376 A4 51081 2013152 150413 34742 4 5798 1503853
Cuert servioe cos 8853 173 - 2452 108108 BB.7R7 1725 - 2177 10824
ket oot TEAT NI = 8433 21N 193,138 21,70 8519 IO
Rereis poid duing the yeor (101,579 (1410004 - 1) Qa4 (1155830 (146231) 3 P40 P43
Pt servics cod - - - - - - - 1570 1570
Adorial igoire] / beses
onaigrion a3y 43880 W 1 mny BO4S 7533 3 523 16204
G.rblr;: » (80.248) 4441 E 2843 QL& (38833 &5.080 e 2 6,197
Freeert
dheed dheyeor LEMBAS 303357 - N 1999338 1455960 2375 4 41,081 2013152
3513  Amount recognissd in fhe prolit ond loss cocount
200 2010
Maragmment Non-Manaogemen! Total Maragement Mon-Management Torad
Persion OGratuity Pension  Grotuily Pension Groiuily Persion  Grahuity
(Rupees ‘000) {Rupeas ‘000)
Cument servioe 008 B8 1713 - 2452 109100 BB, 787 17250 - 2177 108,214
et ocet THA M - 85313 231N 193,138 21,770 - 8519  IMGF
Prpecied msim on pon omes {234,577) 03 1280y (10799 (As5803 (176140 {1,900 [1.051) R747] 188838
Pt srvics cod - = - - - - - - 1570 1570
Criolment jgoin} / loss (80,245) 45341 2843 @83 {38833 &5080 > 6,157
et oouaid ks / lgain)
recogrissd during thevyeor 8o 610 23 1= 5] 14,333 13,575 11,844 11,134 24784
Fimployes conriuions (13 " = : (11322 1772 = £ - 11.772)
Pevens) / evpenen e horyoor (1570) 1051885 (1.273) 2390 10423 6875 a4 [a51) 217 180082
Acud reman plon oees 272593 7418 1665 14217 295095 199405 7748 1,339 3Bo2 232354
35145  Movwment in the ossst / {lobilly) recognised in the bolonos shest
amm 2010
Managemen! Non-Managemant Management Nofr-Management Totad
{Rupoes ‘000) (Rupsss ‘000)
Rakanos ot e bagining of o7y WSS (WBEW 007 PO5EIR 8456 0549 33,550
Nt e/ Iechorged bor e yer 1570 (105,185) 173 2290 (10e237 KB7s (113494 1051 217 180987
Conébaions by he Campary - - MNY1&2 908 AT - & 170554
Aot/ fichild in o st
peldhiitrust g ok (78.598) 11020 18683 (11928} 2939 D9ORF) Q77 0935 26839
Clment aooourt baance wih nds 31281 1 1 - - 213989 37,181 104,946 = - 142127
ISLIBG (193,937 11,020 18643 200004 o0 (191913 Q747 20835 115265
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B7

35.1.8
35.1.9
35.1.10

Plon ey comprissd of the fellowing:
o 2010
Managamaont Mon-Managament Tkl Manragomant Man-Managamant okl
Psnsion Gratuky Pension Gromity Pendon Grasulty Pendion Grawity
(Rupess *000) (Rupess ‘000)
PEs TRCimc 1,583,964 89,543 sa5r 45543 17H006 2 052 38808 5958 40344 1055592
Ml Furd Unis - - - - - 141,344 43083 o 11413 196,489
Rork cermsis 515 2054 15578 53704 3a3sa 730051 B13 3,381 B350 FTM
birfurd e °r - (et . = ; = - = S
Brande (1843 (42248 5 (13778 (39855} - : - - -
DeoSe fdoonlimed  (@1,281)  (183,661) - - (213,942} B8 N0dndy - - (142,127

2088112 (133408) 11701 83,158 2045563 IE0S018 (22207 1003 B5765 1,878,118
Expected contributions 1o the above schemss for the year ending December 31, 2012 are Rs. 38,000 thousand.

The balances due to Shell Pakistan Limited from the funds are inferest free and repayable on demand.

The breckup of balonce receivable from staff refirement benefit schemes is:
2011 2010
—(Rupees ‘000)

Total balance receivable in respect of defined

benelit schemes 202,014 115,289
Total balance receivable in respect of defined

confribufion schemes 27,688 77,369

229,702 192,658

Post retirement medical benefits

The Company also provides post refirement medical benefis 1o its monagement staff. Actuorial voluation of the
scheme is carmied out annually, The amount recognised in the bolance sheet is based on a valuation caried out as
at the bakance sheet date and is s follows:

Actuarial plions 2011 2010
= % per annum

The folkowing significant assumptions were
used in the valualion of this scheme:

- Discount rate 13.00 14.25
- Medical cost frend rofe 7.50 8.75
2011 2010
Amount recognised in the bolance sheet Note ——(Rupees ‘000)
Present value of defined benefit obligation 3523 71,122 58,302
Fair value of plan assefs B ;
71,122 58,302

Actuarial losses fo be recognised in future
pericds in accordance with the Company's

accounting policy (29,564) [21,429)
Liaility recognised at the end of the year 41,558 36,873
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2011 2010
35.2.3 Movement in the present value of defined MNote (Rupees “000)
benefit obligation
Present value of cbligation at the beginning
of the year 58,302 53814
Current service cost 1,451 1,315
Interest cost 7,900 6,576
Benefits paid during the year (5,776) (4,621}
Adiurial losses en abligation 9,245 1,218
Present value of obligation at the end
of the year 71,122 58,302
35.24 Movement in the liability recagnised in
the balance sheet
Balance at the beginning of the year 36,873 31,107
Charge for the year 3525 10,461 10,387
Payments during the year {5.776) (4,621}
Balance ot the end of the year 41,558 36,873
35.2.5 Ameocunt recognised in the profit and
loss account
Current service cost 1,451 1,315
Interest cost 7,900 6,576
Actucriol loss recognised during the year 1,110 2,496
104561 10,387
38.2.6 The effect of a 1% movement in the assumed medical cost frend rafe is as follows:
. Increase Decrease
Additional expense of 1% of 1%
Effect on the aggregate of the curent service cost {Rupees 000)
ond interest cost for the year 1,657 1,319
Effect on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 8,594 7,085
35.3 Five year data on surplus / deficit of the plans and experience adjusiments
The Company amortizes gains and losses over the expected remaining service of current plan members. The
following toble shows the fofal pension, gratuity and post refirement medical benefit obligation af the end of each
year and the proportion thereof resulling from experience loss during the year, similary, it shows the tolal pension
and gratuity plon assets at the end of each year ond the proportion thereof resulfing from experience gain during the
L Docombor 31, Decomber31, Decomber31, Decomber31,  June 30,
201 2010 2009 2008 2008
Rupees ‘000
Present value of defined ( )
benefit obligation 2,070,360 2,071,454 1957677 1,559,628 1,481,487
Fair value of plan assets (2,045,563) (1,878,118) (1,777,661] (1,460,480) (1,500,515)
[Deficit] / surplus (24,797) (193,336} {180,014} (99,148) 19,028
(Percentage)
Experience adjustments:

loss /' [gain] on obligation 2 1 (3) - ]
Gain / (loss} on plon assets 3 2 5 (9) (2)
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35.4 The value of invesimenis made by the staff refirement funds operaled by the Company as per their lost audiled

financial statements are as follows:

Shell Pakiston Management Staff Provident Fund
Shell Pakisian Staff Provident Fund

Shell Pakiston lobour Provident Fund

Shell Pakisian Management Staff Gratuity Fund

Shell Pakisian lobour and Clerical Stoff Gratuity Fund
Shell Pakisian Management Staff Pension Fund

Shell Pakiston Stoff Pension Fund

2010 2009
—(Rupees ‘000)———
559,916 499,357

3,462 3,691

107,765 90,981
79,274 76,386
84,340 82,029
1,746,359 1,570,307
9,255 8,197
2,59037M 2,330,948

35.5 Aggregale amount charged in these financial staiements in respect of the sioff refirement benefit schemes is as

follows:
2011 2010
—(Rupees ‘000)
- in respect of pension and grafuity scheme 104,232 180,982
-in respect of provident funds 56,331 32224
- in respect of post retirement medical benefit scheme 10,461 10,387
171,024 223,593
36. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
2011 2010
Chief Direct Executives Chief Executives
Executive Executive e
—— (Rupees ‘000) (Rupees ‘000) ————
Shori-term employee
benefils
Managerial remuneration
{including bonus) 35,769 51,922 866,922 30,802 29,293 934 421
Housing:
- Rent 5,540 - - 4,650 = =
- Utilifies 847 1,032 24,144 1,123 498 23,511
- Other ilems 108 270 6468 72 144 6,900
Medical expenses 95 262 22,836 54 421 26,593
42359 53486 920370 36,701 30,356  ©91,425
Post-employment
benefits
Company'’s confribution
to pension, grafuity
and provident fund 1,675 2,563 115,484 - 4,210 119,037
44,034 56,049 1,035,854 36,701 34,566 1,110,462
Number of persons)
at year end 1 3 389 1 4 4657
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36.1 Aggregate amount charged in the financial sialements for the year for fee to & NonExecutive Dirediors was
Rs. 1,120 thousand [2010: 5 NonExecutive Directors Rs. 1,080 thousand),

36.2 In oddifion, the Chief Executive, Executive Directors and some of the Executives were also provided with free use
of Company mainiained cars and are enlitled o certain benefits from Shell Group. The Chief Bxecutive was also
provided with Company fumished accommedation.

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant ransactions entered by the Company with relofed parties are as follows:

Nature of relationship  Nature of ransactions 2011 2010
Note —— (Rupees '000) —
Assaciate
Pak-Arab Pipeline
Company Limited Pipelina charges 705,204 813,495
Staff retirement bensfit /
confribution funds
Pension Funds Contibution 95,696 ©8,018
Gratuity Funds Contiibution 23,446 22,536
Pravident Funds Confribution 43,175 30,353
Other related parties Purchases 89,490,290 88,527,179
Sales 2,161,446 1,113,071
Technical service fee
charged 37.1 1,037,354 1,032,223
Trade marks and manifestations
license fee charged 372 222,815 183,880
Computer expenses charged
{Global Infrastruture
Desktop charges) 37.2 174,879 146,482
ERP implementation
charges 37.3 - 1,270,668
Expenses recovered from related
parfies 288,344 352,075
Ciher expenses charged by related
parfies 74 510,330 503,284
legal charges 342 38
Gain on disposal of operaling assets
to key management personnel 372 1,705

37.1 Technical services include advice and assistance fo the Company in its operations. The fee for these services have
been determined on the basis of an agreement between the Company and a related Shell Group company based
on an agreed methodology.

37.2 Trade marks and manifestations licence fee and Global Infrastructure Deskiop charges are based on the agreements
entered into by the Company with Shell Group companies.

373 These represent charges in respect of implementation of Company’s Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system as
mentioned in note 5.2 fo these financial skalements.

37.4 These includes charges amounfing to Rs. 197,432 thousand (2010: 216,897 thousand) in respect of services
obiained from Shell Shared Business Service Centre companies under agreement entered into with them by the

Company.
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3a7.5

37.6

37.7

Key management personnel are those persons having autherily and responsibility for planning, directing and contralling
the acfivities of the Company directly or indirectly. The Company considers ifs Chief Executive and Execufive Directors
to be key management personnel. Particulars of fransacfions entered inlo with key management personnel are as per
their ferms of employment os are disclosed in notes 4.4, 7 and 36 to these financial stafements.

Transactions and outstanding balance In respect of the workers’ profits participation fund ore disclosed in note 20.3

fo these financial siatements.

Expenses recovered from / charged by related parties are based on adiuals. The related oulstanding balances have
been disclosed in notes 13.2, 15.6 and 20.1 fo these financial siatements.

INFORMATION ABOUT PRODUCTS

As described in nofe 1 1o these financial statemenis the Company

markets pefroleum products and compressed

natural gos. It also blends and markets various kinds of lubricating oils. Revenues (inclusive of sales ted from external

customers for products of the Company are os follows:

2011 2010
Product Note (Rupess ‘000)
Motor Gasoline 56,512,773 44 716,399
High Speed Diesel 122,688,886 107,341,188
Jet Fuels 43,245,007 37,662,539
Lybricants 12,954,767 11,837,802
Cihers 12,105,104 22,255,664
25 247,506,537 223,813,592
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Prolit before toxation 2,832,717 3,044,085
Adjusiment for norrcash charges and other items:
Depreciation and amartisation charge 1,085,375 988,971
Provision for asset refirement cbligation 19 178 -
Accrefion expense in respect of asset retirement
obligatien 32 10,707 7717
Reversal of liability in respect of asset refirement
obligation 31 (8,638) (32,651)
Provision for impairment of rade debis 30 52,679 173,712
Reversal of provision for impaiment
of frade debts 31 (36,702) [79,571]
Provision for impairment of operating
gssets 30 38,400 =
Wite off of operaling assets 30 148,104 @8,922
Gain) / loss on di | of fin
[ uss]eé S 31 and 20 (24,252) 4,052
Adjustments in operating ossets 4.1 15,751 -
Share of profit of associale 6.1 (635,191) [596,008]
Markup on shorkerm depasits 31 (26,931) (52,471}
Markup on sherterm running finances, shorterm
loans and longterm loans 32 1,866,644 1,065,444
Finance charge on liabiliies against assels subject
to finance lease 32 1,505 4,726
Working capital changes 39.1 (6-334,809) [112,070]
(1,014,463) 4,514,858
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. . 2011 2010
39.1 %I'il]l’lg (qﬂll d‘lﬂl’qﬁ Note [Ilupus Jm,
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores and spares (641) 1,217
Stockintrade (5,498,784) 728,280
Trade debts (495,142) (886,926
Loans and advances 9,655 (15,204
ShorHerm prepayments 34,251 [55,334]
Other receivables (4,947,768) (3,833,131)
(10,898,429) (4,061.79%]
increase in current liabilities
Trode and ather payobles 4,563,620 3,949,728
(6,334,809) [112,070)
40. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 16 1,438,447 1,045,025
Shorterm rynning finances ufilised under markup
amangements (7,866,032) [1,586,438)
Shorterm loons (7,879,000) 18,400,000)
(14,306,585) 8,941 ,413)
4a1. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
41.1 The Company's exposure lo interest rate risk on ils financial assets and liabilifies as at the balance sheet date are
summarised as follows:
2011
interast / Mark-up bearing Non-Interast / Mark-up bearing
Maturity Maturity Maturity  Maturity
uploone aftercone Sublotal yploone afterone Subtotal Total
ysar ysar year
(Rupess ‘000)
Financial assefs
Available-for-sale
Irvestments - - 5,000 5,000 5,000
Loans and receivables
loans 56,913 88,240 145,153 836 1099 1,935 147,088
Deposts . . . 97,145 97,145 97,145
Trade debis - ] 2,488,910 3,732 2492642 2492642
Crher moatvoblas - - - 3320412 - 3319412 3329412
Cash and bank balonces 49,9986 - 49,998 1,388,451 - 1,388,451 1,438,847
1065909 88,240 195,149 7,20760% 106976 7314585 7,509,734
Financial liabilities
Financial liabllifies at
amortisad cost
Trada and other payables - - 2217877 22,178,177 22,178,177
Accrued markup - - 217,645 - 217,645 27,645
Shortterm munning firance utilsed
under markup amangements 7,866,032 7,866,032 - - 7,866,032
Shorterm loans 7 279,000 7 379,000 - - - 7,879,000
15,745,032 15,745,032 22395822 - 22,395,822 38,140,854
On balunce sheet gop (15,638,123) 88,240 (15,549,883) (15,188,.213) 106976 (15,081,237) (30,631,120)
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2010
intarest / Mark-up bearing Non-interest / Marlc-up bearing
uptoone afterone Sublofal yploone afterone Sublolal  Total
year yoar year year
{Rupees “000)
Financial assels
Available-for-sale
Investrents J = - . 5,000 5,000 5,000
Loans and receivables
Lmans 51,664 76,359 128,023 1,023 1028 2,049 130,072
Deposis ; - ; - 75,564 75,564 75,564
Trade debis - = : 2.013,358 11,442 2,024 800 2,024,800
Chher receivablas . : - 3,637,526 - 3,637,526 3.637 526
Gl ot bork bakanees 43,003 : 43,003 1,001,122 - 1,001,122 1,045,025
Q5,507 76,35% 171,926 6,653,029 23,032 6,746,061 6,917 987
Financial linbifities
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
Trade ond ciher payobles : : : 17,247,422 - 17247422 17,247,422
Accnied markup 864,350 86,350 84,350
Liabilifies ogainst assals mbpd
to finonce leose 15,550 2,662 18,212 = = = 18,212
Shortarm ninning financa ulilised
uncler markup omongemerts 1,586,438 - 1,584,438 £ = - 1,586,438
ShorHerm loans 8,400,000 - 8,400,000 - - - 8,400,000
10,001,988 2,662 10,004,650 17,333,772 - 17333772 27,338,422

On balanes sheat gap [9,900,421) 73697 9832724 (10,680,743) 93032 (10587.711] (20,420435)

The on balance sheet gap represents the net amounis of onbalance sheet items.

The effective Interest / markup rates for the monetary financial assets and lickiliies are menfioned in the respective
noiss fo the financial skalements.

41.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's aclivilies are exposed fo a variely of financial risks namely credit risk, foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk and liquidity risk. The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of
working copital with a view of mainining an appropriate mix between varicus sources of finance to minimise risk
and provide maximum refum to shareholders.

41.2.1 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised ot the reporfing dote if counter parties failed
completely to perform as contracted.

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and its with banks and financial insfitutions, as well as credit
exposures o customers, including trade receivables and committed transactions. The maximum credit risk is equal
fo the camying amount of financial assets. Out of the financial assets aggregating Rs. 7,509,734 thousand (2010:
Rs. 6,917,987 thousand) the financial assefs sublect to credit risk amount 1o Rs, 7,495,935 thousand (2010:
Rs. 6,897,712 thousand). For banks and financial insfitufions, only independently raled parties with @ minimum
rating of A are accepted. For irade receivables, intemal risk assessment process determines the credit quality of the
customer, faking into account iis financial posilion, past experience and other foctors. Individual risk limits are st
based on intfemal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the management, The utilization of credit limits
is regularly monfored.
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Cencentralions of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business adivilies o
have similor economic features fhat would cause their ability to meet confractual obligations 1o be similary offected
by changes in economic, palilical or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicale the relafive sensilivity
of the Company’s perfformance o developments affecting o particular industry. The most significant financiol assets
exposed lo credit risk are lrade debis and other receivables of the Company. The ufilisation of credit limits is regularly
monitored.

The carrying values of financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired are as under:

2011 2010
—  (Rupees “000)
loans 147,088 130,072
Deposits 97,145 75,564
Trade debis 2,358,741 1,499,030
Other recaivablas 3329412 3,637,526
Cash and bank balances 1,438,447 1,045,025
7,370,833 6,387,217

The credit quality of receivables can be assessed with reference to their historical parformance with no or some
defaults in recent history, however, no losses. The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with
reference to exdernal credit rafings os follows:

Rahng
Bank Ratfing agency Shortterm  Long term
Natianal Bank of Pakiskan JCRVIS Al+ AAA
Standord Charerad Bank
{Pakistan) Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
United Bank Limited JCRVIS Al+ AA+
Habib Bank Limited JCRVIS Al+ A+
Askari Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA
Bank Alfclah limited PACRA Al+ AA
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ Al
Ciribank IN.A. S&P Al At
Deutsche Bank AG S&p Al A+
Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi UF]
Limited Pakiskan S&pP Al A+
HSBC Bank Middle East limited Moody's Pl Al
41.2.2 Marloet risk

Market risk is the risk thet the value of the financial instruments may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest retes,
foreign exchange rates of the equity prices due fo a change in credit rafing of the issuer or the instrument, change in
market senfiments, spaculative octivities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market.

i) Currency risk

Cumency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Foreign cumrency risk arises mainly where payables exist due to imports of goods and fransac-
fions with foreign related parties as well as trade receivables from foreign related pariies. The Company primarily has
foreign cumrency exposures in US Dollar (USD), Great Britain Pounds (GBP} and Euro [EUR).
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As at December 31, 2011, had the exchange rates of USD, GBP and EUR apprecioted or depraciated against the
currency with all other variables held consiant, the change in postox profit would have been as follows:

‘ i 2011
Currency Profit ' 2010
Y% Rs. ‘000 % Rs. ‘000

usD lower / higher 10% 513,444 10% A24 607
GBP lower / higher 10% 21,019 10% 82,785
EUR lower / higher 105 18,796 10% 8,848
nterest rate ns

ii) 1 isk

Interest rate risk Is the: risk thatt the: fair value or future cash flows of a financlal Instrument will fluchucte because of changes
in market inferest rates. As the Company has no significant Interestbearing assets, the Company’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes In market Inferest rates.

The Company's inferest rate risk arlses from shorerm loans and running finance faciliies. Loans and munning finance
obtained at variable rates expase the Company o cash flow inferest rate risk.

The Company analyses its inferest rafe exposure on a regular basis by moniforing existing facilities against prevailing
market interast rates and taking Info account varlous other financing options available.

At December 31, 2011, If inferest rates on Company’s borrowings had been 1% higher / lower with all other
variables held constant, post fax profit for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 102,343 thousand (2010:
Rs. 64,212 thousand) mainly as a result of higher / lower Interest exposure on varable rate bomowings.

iii)Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from curency risk or inferest rate risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instruments o ifs issuer or factors offecting all similar financial instruments raded
in the market. The Company is not expased fo equily securities prica risk as cumently the Company has no investments

in listed securities.

41.2.3Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the: risk that an enterprise will encounter difficullies in raising funds fo meet commitments associated with
financial instruments.

Through Its reasury function, the Company confinually mantfors s liquidity posifion and ensures avallability of funds by
maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed crediit lines available.

The maturity profile of the Company’s liabilifies based on contrachual maturities is disclosed in note 41.1 fo these
financial statements.

41.3 Capilal Risk Monogement
The Company's prime objective when managing oapital Is to safeguard its abllity to confinue as a going concem In
order fo provide adequate refurns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an opfimal capital
stucture to reduce the cost of capital.

In order fo malntaln or adjust the capital siructure, the Company may ad|ust the amount of dividends paid 1o shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets fo reduce debt.
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Consistent with others in the indusiry, the Company menitors capilal en the basis of the gearing rafic. This ratio is

colculated os net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculoted os ofal bormawings less cosh and bank balances.
Total capilal s calculated as equity as shown in the balance sheet plus net debt.

2011 2010
Note (Rupees ‘000)
Tolal borowings 15,745,032 10,004,650
Cash and bank balances 16 (1,438,447) 11,045,025]
Net Debt 14,306,585 8959625
Total Equity 8,258,121 7,900,035
Tolal Capital 22,564,706 16,859 660
Gearing Ratio 63.40°% 53.14%

41.4 Fair value of financial instruments
The carrying value of financial insfruments reflected in the financicl statements approximate the'r fair values.
42. NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Subsequent o the year end, the Board of Direclors of the Company in their meefing held on March 7, 2012 have
proposed a 25% issue of bonus shares in the rafio of one share for every four shares held by sharehalders. The approval
of the members for issue of bonus shares will be obtained in the Annual General Mesting to be held on April 19, 2012.
The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 do nat include the effect of these appropriafions which
will be accounted for in the financial statlements for the year ending December 31, 2012,
43. CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Comesponding figures have been rearmanged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purpase of comparisen.
44. GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off fo the nearest thousand.
45. DATE OF AUTHORISATION

These financial statements were authorised for issue on March 7, 2012 by the Board of Directors of the Campany.

Sarim Sheikh Badaruddin F. Vellani
Chairman & Chief Executive Director
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Total No. No. of Board
Name of Director of Boord Mestings" Mestings Attended
Mr. Zeivifi lsmail bin Abdullah 4 4
Ms. Shohnaz Wazir Ali 3 3
Mr. Rofi H. Basheer 4 4
Mr. Farmokh K. Capiain 6 6
Mr. Chong Keng Cheen 6 4
Mr. Gary Fisher 5 5
M. Imran R. lorahim 6 6
Mr. Nasser NS, Jaffer 3 2
M. Zaoffar A Khan 6 o]
Mr. Micheal Noll 6 4
M. Haroon Rashid 1 1
M. Sarim Sheikh 6 6
M. Omar Y. Sheikh 6 6
Mr. Badaruddin F. Vellani o) 5

*held during the period concemed Director was on the Board.
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Total Number of
Shares Held

Number of Shareholding

Shareholders From To

1,575 1 100

1,976 101 500

@58 201 1,000

1,064 1,001 5,000

186 5,001 10,000

&8 10,001 15,000

25 15,001 20,000

14 20,001 25,000

13 23,001 30,000

10 30,001 35,000

B 35,001 40,000

] 40,001 45,000

4 45,001 50,000

2 50,001 55,000

2 53,001 60,000

] 60,001 465,000

3 73,001 80,000

3 80,001 85,000

1 20,001 25,000

2 05,001 100,000

1 100,001 103,000

1 105,001 110,000

| 120,001 125,000

2 125,001 130,000

1 155,001 160,000

1 165,001 170,000

1 173,001 180,000

] 215,001 220,000

1 295,001 300,000

1 340,001 345,000

| 345,001 350,000

] 350,001 355,000

1 465,001 470,000

1 620,001 625,000

1 675,001 680,000

] 685,001 690,000

1 2,360,001 2,365,000

1 52,120,001 52,125,000

3,935

Shareholders’ Number of Number of
Category Shareholders Shares Held
Individuals 5,804 Q683,790
Investment Companies 14 1,404,810
Insurance Companies 7z 2,840,019
Joint Stock Companies 56 342,337
Medaraba Companies 4 18,518
Financial Institutions 11 410,708
Associated Companies™ 1 52,123,970
Abandoned Properties* * 1 150
Cthers 37 1,663,590
5,935 68,487,892

[

e This category represents shareholders of Banglodesh, whose dividend is paid o the Administrater,

Abandoned Properties Organisation, Government of Pakistan.
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This category represenis the foreign shareholding of The Shell Petroleum Company Lid., London.

62,698
573,936
719,793

2,351,545
1,314,525
835,565
453,917
330,168
335,819
329,391
299,566

40,125
187.,97¢
101,288
112,328

60,576
234,672
246,376

935,000
200,000
100,200
106,672
120,897
251,963
157,171
167,227
177,631
216,250
300,000
343,606
346,015
352,954
469,675
624,359
©73,3931
685,468

2,363,039
52,123,970
68,487,892

Terceniags

14.14
2.05
4.15
0.50
0.03
0.60

76.11
0.00
2.43

100.00



Pattern of Shareholding

for the year ended December 31, 2011

Additional Information

Shareholders’

Associated companies
The Shell Petroleum Company Limited, London

NIT and ICP

National Investment Trust

National Bank of Pakistan Trustee Department
Investment Corporation of Pakistan

Directors

M. Farrokh K. Captain
M. Imran R, Ibrahim

Mr. Zaffar A. Khan

Mr. Badaruddin F. Vellani

Chief Executive Officer
Directors’ / CEQ's spouses

Mrs. Samina Ibrahim
w/o. Mr. Imran R. lbrahim

Executives

Public sector companies and corporations

Banks, Development Finance
Institutions, Non-banking Finance
Iinstitutions, Insurance Companies,
Modarbas and Mutual Funds

Shareholders heolding 10% or more voting interest

The Shell Petroleum Company Limited, London

Number of
Shareholders

Number of
Shares held

—

32

52,123,970

59
2,305

469,816
45,084
5156
125

17,864

2,435
3,048,727

2,308,432

52,123,970
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Form of Proxy The Secratary

Shell Pakistan Limited
Shell House

6, Ch. Khaliquzzaman Road
P.O. Box No. 3901
Karachi = 75530

I/We
of in the district of
being a member of Shell Pakistan Limited and holder of

Ordinary Shares as per Share Register Folio

[No. of Shares)

No. and/or CDC Participant |. D. No,
and Sub Account No, hereby appoint

of in the district of

or failing him of

as my/our proxy fo vote for me/us and on my/our behalf of the Forty-Third Annual General Meeting
of the Company to be held on April 19, 2012 at 10:00 a.m. at the Sheraton Karachi Hotel, Karachi and at any

adjournment thereof,

Signed this day of 2012.

WITNESSES: Signature
1. Signat [Signature should agree with the specimen

Name signature registered with the Company)
Address

CNIC or
Passport No.

2. Signature
Name
Addrass

CNIC or
Passport No.

Notes:

1. A member entifled to attend and vote at the meefing may appoint another person, as his/her proxy to attend,
demand or join in demanding a poll, speak and vote instead of him/her, and a proxy so appointed shall
have such rights, as respects altending, speaking and voting of the meeting as are available to a member,

2.  Proxies in order to be effective must be received af the registered office of the Company not later than 48
hours before the meefing.

3. A Proxy need not be o member of the Company.

4.  Shareholders and their proxies must aftach an aftested photocopy of their CNIC or Passport with this Proxy
Form. A Proxy shall be required to produce his/her original CNIC or passport at the venue of the meeting
for authentication of his/her identity.






Shell Pakistan Limited
Shell House, 6 Ch Khaliquzzaman Road, Karachi-Z75530, Pakistan.
www.shell.com.pk
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